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Singer Finance PLC 
spearheaded the credit card 

company sector by introducing 

backing of Singer (Sri Lanka) 
PLC our parent Company, we 
are set and ready to conquer 

durables and introduce a wide 

competitive edge we will strive 

levels delivering the best to our 
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VISION

To be the foremost Finance 
Company in Sri Lanka.

MISSION
To continuously improve the quality of life of Sri Lankans by 

VALUES

Community
We conduct our business by 
conforming to the ethics of our 
country and share the social 

fortunate

Employees
We respect each other 
as individuals and 
encourage cross functional 
teamwork while providing 
opportunities for career 
development

Competitors
We respect our 
competitors and recognise 
their contribution to the 
Finance Industry

Environment

to ensure that the 
environment is protected 
and conserved for the 
future generations

Consumers
We live up to the 
expectations of a 
responsible organisation 
by providing customer-

Shareholders
We provide a reasonable 
return while safeguarding 
their investment
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Gross NPL Ratio Net NPL Ratio Net Assets Per Share

2.05%

 23 02 18  317 

0.40% Rs. 16.46 

Financial Highlights
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2016/17 2015/16
 Change  
 %

Financial Performance (Rs. 000)
Gross Income  2,610,297  2,113,396 23.5
Interest Income  2,418,122  1,982,889 21.9

 978,996 688,135 42.3
 568,214  646,813 -12.2
 198,385  205,958 -3.7
 369,829  440,855 -16.1

Revenue to the Government  339,027  293,928 15.3
Gross Dividends 175,253  248,000 -29.3

Financial Position at the Year End (Rs. 000)
Total Equity  2,720,616  2,597,628 4.7
Public Deposit  3,210,548  3,173,767 1.2

 11,552,460  10,036,295 15.1
 12,698,479  11,035,809 15.1

Investor Information
Earnings Per Share (Rs.)  2.24  2.67 -16.0
Dividend Per Share (Rs.) 1.06  1.50 -29.3

 16.46  15.71 4.7
Price Earning Ratio (Times)  7.64  6.79 12.6
Dividend Payout Ratio (Times) 49.88  59.22 -15.77
Dividend Cover (Times) 2.11  1.78 18.54

Ratios
 2.05  2.18 
 0.40  0.46 

 42.98  38.65 
Gross Interest Margin (%)  59.51  65.39 
Net Interest Margin (NIM) (%)  12.65  13.55 

 4.79  6.51 
 13.91  17.77 

Interest Cover (Times)  1.58  1.95 
 0.29  0.34 

Debt : Equity Ratio (Times)  3.41  2.95 
 1.78  1.89 

Statutory Ratios
 12.59  13.34 

Core Capital Ratio (%) (Minimum Requirement 5%)  19.00  22.92 
 19.00  22.92 
 84.74  81.85 
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16.9%
Vehicle loan
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Rs. 78.4 Mn
Increased

During the year, Singer Finance expanded the vehicle loan portfolio. 

individuals who wanted urgent working capital loans . 
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Sri Lanka is now rapidly moving towards a cash-less society with an 
increase in debit and credit card transactions with retail payments in 
cash for goods and services recording a decline. Dr. Saman Kelegama 

Chairman 
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Glimpse on the Economy
The Sri Lankan economy recorded a 4. 4% 

budgets presented in 2015 and 2016, Sri 

foreign direct investments (FDIs). In this 
policy turnaround, the Government had 

that moves gradually according to market 

revenue in order to balance the budget; in 

Monetary Fund (IMF) in June 2016 and 
gradually increasing the interest rates to 

sector. These measures did have an impact 

31.8 per cent during 2015.

LFC/SLC Sector

comprising the Licensed Finance Companies 

Rupees One Trillion mark in assets.  The 

encouraging and by end 2016, the sector 
comprised 46 LFCs, 7 SLCs and 1,313 

of LFC sector, recent measures by the 

regulate the motor vehicle leasing industry 

(LTV) ratios, caused contraction in the 

of 2016, as a result of revision on the LTV 
ratios on vehicle leasing, accelerated during 

100% of the value of vehicle being  reduced 

their total value for motor cars, SUV’s and 

for commercial vehicles (lorries and heavy 
vehicles). These measures on vehicle leasing 

entire vehicle leasing industry, leading to a 
decline in income from the business.

While the revision resulted in a drop in 
business volumes for the leasing business 

vehicles. 

The sector’s reliance on retail deposits has 

the overall funding structure of the sector 

36.2 per cent in 2016 from 31.6 per cent in 

to 43.8 per cent in 2016 from 48.3 per cent 

or Rs. 124.4 billion to Rs. 438.7 in absolute 

“Your Company 
recorded another 

business to expand 
its portfolio and 
reduce dependence 
on its leasing 
activities for income 

on a path to innovate 

avenues of income, 

level of maturity in 
overall business.”

Letter from the Chairman
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Performance in Expansion Mode 
with reduced dependence on 
leasing 
Despite these prudential measures by 

its portfolio and reduce dependence on its 

overall business. 

the Company reached Rs. 2.6 billion in the 

Interest Income, Fee and Commission 
Income, Trading Income and Other Operating 
Income.

commendable, considering the backdrop 

interest costs had a major impact on the 
performance of the Company in the year 

290.8 million to Rs. 978.9 million,  posting 

during the year due to policy rates being 
increased by the government.  Despite steep 

The steep increase in impairment cost of 142 

year also recorded an increase in bad debts 
in the latter part of the 3rd quarter and the 

attributable to general market conditions 
and liquidity constraints in the hands of the 
consumer. 

considering the fact that the previous 

by 82.3% to Rs. 29.1 million, contributing 

Last year’s reduction on impairment costs 

conditions resulting in an increase in 

patterns. 

increased by 33%, mainly due to the Credit 

Company’s NPL declined from 2.18% in 
March 2016 to 2.05% in March 2017, a very 
healthy NPL position for a Finance Company.

We Continue to Make History

institution to launch a visa credit card. 

payments in cash for goods and services 
recording a decline. In response to these 

Debit Card in the 3rd quarter of the Calendar 

inclusion in the economy.

suppliers of the Group.  

Challenges Ahead 
The future holds many challenges more 
regulation to the industry is inevitable and 

in a more competitive industry landscape, 

edge.  

Despite prudential measures adopted by the 

Company in the short and medium term 
seem a realistic goal. 

of good governance, ethical management 
and business.

The priority of the Company is to maintain 

our stakeholders and our customers. We 
also strive to safeguard our most valued 
asset, our team. Our focus in human 
resource management is to recruit, build 

team, to provide equal opportunities and 

Factoring business and Revolving Loans. 

market share in traditional businesses like  
Leasing and Consumer Durables Financing. 

Letter from the Chairman
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Planning (ERP) management information 

Acknowledgements

shareholders and customers have continued 

Credit Committee and the Group Related 

their valuable services throughout this period 

the valuable services of Mr. Joe Kan 

the successor for the outgoing Director. My 

the industry in the path to success.

Dr. Saman Kelegama 
Chairman 

02nd  June  2017
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We were successful in growing business volumes of core business area 
of leasing and loans.  The challenge was to maintain the net interest 
margin in an environment where interest rates grew sharply.

Asoka Pieris
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Dear Shareholders,

The Environment and Business 
Conditions

in 2015/16, increased very sharply by around 

400 - 500 basis points and in percentage 

terms by 60% on the prior year rates.

population dependent on agriculture.

The government increased the value added 

May, but had to postpone it in mid-July due 

again from 1st November.  

The level of consumer spending in 2016/17 

and due to reduction of income as a result of 

the drought.

The government continued to restrict on 

the loan to value ratio for leases and also 

Our Strategies and Actions

in the core business are of leasing and 

loans. 

b) Maintain net interest margins in an 

environment of rising interest rates.

business.  

such as factoring and invoice discounting.

the parent company, Singer (Sri Lanka) 

PLC.

system.

Core Business

volumes of core business area of leasing, 

the net interest margin in an environment 

incremental business, the average margins 

present.

Due to the challenging market conditions 

of loans increased from Rs. 29.1 Million to 

note that despite this increase our NPL ratios 

industry. 

Singer Finance Credit Card 

During the year, Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC 

had the public launch of the Singer branded 

Credit Card.  This is an internationally accepted 

“In October 2015, 
Singer commenced 
issuing credit cards 
on a limited and test 
basis and had the 
public launch in July 
2016. 
 

almost 12,000 cards 
have been issued 
and during the 

transactions including 
4,600 international 
transactions.”

Review
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Singer’s entry into the credit card business 

purchase to customers.  We see that in the 

long term this business could be taken over 

by credit cards.  Singer has many years of 

consumers of the mass market.  Currently, 

credit cards are used by less than 5% of the 

eligible population. 

In October 2015, Singer commenced issuing 

credit cards on a limited and test basis and 

had the public launch in July 2016.  

12,000 cards have been issued and during 

transactions including 4,600 international 

transactions.

Singer Finance debit card is in process and 

Factoring and Bill Discounts

The Company ventured into factoring and 

successful in increasing business volume of 

Capitalization on Strengths of 
Parent Company

strengths of its parent company, Singer (Sri 

Lanka) PLC.  Singer Finance continues the 

hire purchase lending operations at Singer 

locations.  Singer Finance continued it’s 

durable sector. The factoring and bill 

suppliers of Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC.  

New Branches and Infrastructure 

The Company’s ERP system used from the 

inception had to be replaced due to issues in 

adapting it to the present level of business.  

ERP system.

Financial Results for the Year

year declined to Rs. 369.8 Million from Rs. 

440.8 Million in prior year. 

the startup of the credit card, impairment 

While interest income increased by 22% the 

operating income increased by 14.5% to Rs. 

and others increased from Rs. 29.1 Million 

in prior year to Rs. 70.5 Million.  Personnel 

costs increased by 26% and administration 

the startup of the credit card and impairment 

of old ERP system.  The impairment cost of 

Funding

too Singer Finance is not over dependent on 

39%, public deposits amount to 37% and 

bank funding account for 24%.

Risk and Controls

Singer Finance continues to focus on the 

risks and controls. The Company has strong 

internal controls, tight credit approvals and 

The non-performing loan ratio at 2.05% is 

Singer Finance continues to focus on 

safeguarding the shareholders and deposit 

systems and controls and adequate funding.  

The shareholder funds to deposit ratio is 

adequacy ratio of 19% is one of the best in 

the industry and very much more than the 

Changes in the Board

During the year, Mr. Joe Kan, the Chief 

Joe Kan for his valuable guidance during 

Singer Finance.  

Review
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Acknowledgement

overcome challenging conditions.

I thank the Chairman, Dr. Saman Kelegama 

guidance in steering the Company.  I also 

support and guidance.

their guidance.  I also thank the General 

I also thank all our Shareholders for their 

the Management of the Company.

Sincerely,

Asoka Pieris

02nd  June  2017
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Our Company managed to record a 

in the industry from revised LTV ( Loan to 

accepted EMV chip enabled visa credit card, a 

reaching the outstation segments especially 

decades.

Financial highlights: increase in 
costs, improved NPL ratios 

by 23.51 per cent from Rs.2.1 billion to Rs.2.6 
billion, the burden of increased interest costs 

reaching a better level of stability in its fourth 

line to a more healthy level. 

The general oppressive market conditions in 

constraints in the hands of the consumer, led 

(LTV) ratios, intended to reshape the motor 
leasing industry to a more streamlined 
business, placed additional burden on our 

from motor vehicle leasing. Despite these 

vehicle leasing.  

In a backdrop of rising costs, reaching a 

has outdone the industry average in the 

achievement for us.

from 5.7 per cent in 2015 to 5.3 per cent in 

comparison, our NPL too declined from 2.18% 
in March 2016 to 2.05% in March 2017, a very 
healthy NPL position for a Finance Company. 

industry average in the past three years, 

our lending portfolio.

Additional Costs for Business 
Expansion

added to personnel costs during the year 

Cards and the Factoring business also led 

cards and factoring have received top billing 

future.

“It is an achievement 

than the industry 
average in the past 
three years, giving 

and control over our 
lending portfolio.”

Review
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R.S Wijeweera 

Our Company managed to record a substantial growth of 23.5% in 
revenue during the year under review



18

remained healthy. The Company’s revenue 

and Commission Income, Trading Income 
and other Operating Income maintained its 

in the portfolio increased from Rs. 1,162, 
million in 2016 to Rs. 1,610 in 2017, despite 

Ratios on the Rise 
The Net Interest Margin of 12.65%   as of 

increased from Rs 15.71 to Rs 16.46  as of 
31st March 2017. Share Holders Funds to 
Public Deposits at 84.74 %   increased from 

Company’s lesser reliance on public deposits. 

amounted to 27.5%. The debt to equity ratio 
increased marginally from 2.95 to 3.41 as 

to Gross Income increased to 42.98% from 

product development and investment in 

(Financing of Consumer Durables to 
Employees of Large Institutions such as 

the Finance Companies in the Industry) the 
Company is in a position to leverage more 
on this product. Other organisations too can 

access to the Singer Group’s vast product/

employer undertakes the task of monthly 
deductions of rental from the employee’s 

Acknowledgements 
My gratitude on behalf of the management 
team at Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC to our 

the Company on the path to progress. 
My sincere thanks also to the board of 
Directors of our Company for their valuable 
contribution and also the Chairman, the Chief 

valuable support in shaping the strategic 
direction of the Company.  

I take this opportunity to thank the Governor 

credit decisions.

of our managers and employees. It is they 

and competence has resulted in another 

their solid contribution to our success this 
year. 

R.S Wijeweera 

02nd June 2017

Review
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Board of Directors

Mr. Jayendra A Setukavalar 

CMS schools in Sri Lanka and is the current Chairman of its Finance 
Committee. 

Dr. Saman Kelegama 

Joined the 
13th November 2008. 

Industries (Ceylon) PLC and Reality Lanka.

Ltd., Postgraduate Institute of Management (PIM),Standing 
Committee on Humanities and Social Sciences, University Grants 

region.
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Mr. John Hyun 

Mr. Hyun Joined the board of Singer Finance (Lanka) 
PLC on 28th of February 2011. John Hyun is a Managing 

investment groups in terms of liquid capital.

investment team based in Hong Kong before relocating 

 
Mr. Hyun joined UCL in 2003.

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC, Whittington Group Pte Ltd, Erivale 

is an alumnus of the University of Chicago.

Mr. Gavin J Walker 

September 2010.

appliances under license). 

subsidiaries.

Board of Directors
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Mr. Jagath Dissanayake  

July 2016.

industries both locally and internationally. Mr. Dissanayake 
is an alumnus of KPMG, Sri Lanka and held senior positions 

Group of Companies.

Mr. Russell De Mel 

Lanka.

M

La
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Board of Directors

Mr. R.S. Wijeweera  

on 13th November 2008.

industry and has held senior positions in several RFCs.

Postgraduate Institute of Management of the University 

University of Ireland (UCD).

National Chamber of Commerce of Sri Lanka.

Mr. Janaka Mendis 

the opportunity to move into the credit function , he accomplished 

the capacity of Senior Manager Credit , Deputy Credit Director and 
serves presently as the parent company’s Credit Director.  

Mr. Mendis holds a Diploma in Credit Management from Sri 
Lanka Institute of Credit Management and diploma in Financial 

Mr. 

the o

the c
serve

Mr. M
Lank
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Mr. Lalith Yatiwella  

July 2014.

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC.

He is also a Director of Singer Digital Media (Pvt) Ltd., 

of Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC.

Mr. Shyamsunder Ramanathan 

Mr. Ramanathan is currently functions as the Director 
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Mr. Chandana Samarasinghe  

to Mr. Joe Kan. He also serves as Director Operations of 
Singer Sri Lanka PLC, a post he has held since July 2015.

Chandana’s senior management roles include Sales 

Manager in 2010 and Deputy Director, Operations in June 
2014.

e University of Malaysia and is also is a Member of the 
Chartered Institute of Marketing (MCIM).

Mr. Thushan Amarasuriya 

Company Secretary. 

as Financial Controller, at Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC as Manager Financial 

Manager.   He is the present Honorary Treasurer of the Mercantile Cricket 

of Sri Lanka Cricket in an honorary capacity.  

Board of Directors

Mr.

Com

as F

Man

of S
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Ms. Pramila Liyanage   

Pramila Liyanage is the Finance Manager of Singer 
(Sri Lanka) PLC. She has a First-Class Honors Degree 

Mr. Iman Perera 

Development overseeing sales, marketing and the 

Mr. Iman

Developme
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Senior Management
Mr. Thushan Amarasuriya 
Head of Finance 

Company Secretary. 

Mr. Iman Perera 

Mr. Ruwan Jayasuriya
Head of Credit and Recoveries 

parent company managing sales, administration and hire purchase of consumer 
durables. He joined Singer Finance team at inception in 2004 and is heading credit, 

Metropolitan University (Wales), Diploma in Credit Management from the Institute of 
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Mr. Joe Wijeyegoonewardene 
Head of Deposits 

Mr. Thilan Rupasinghe
Head of Cards 

department at Singer Sri Lanka PLC. 
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Middle Management

Mr. Jeevaka Jayawardena 
Senior Credit Manager

Finance and Leasing industry.

Mr. K D S Manoj Kumara 
Senior Operations Manager 

Industry and over 11 years in the Financing and leasing 

Mr. Rajindra Gamage

Mr. Niranjan Sethunga 
Senior Recoveries Manager

in Micro Finance & Livelihood Development from Sri Lanka 

Marketing, Credit & Recovery.
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Mr. Pradeep Boange 
Senior Regional Manager - Kandy 

Mr. Nishantha De Silva
Senior Regional Manager - Matara 

and Leasing industry and has also covered 2 years in Life 
and General insurance. He has successfully completed a 

of Humanities & Social Sciences of University of Ruhuna and 
has completed 3 years in the Higher National Diploma in 
Commerce conducted by the Higher Education Ministry. 

Mr. Roshan Ruwanpura 
Senior Group Sales Manager

Roshan is presently heading the Group Sales Division of 

Sales and Marketing, Recoveries, Credit Control and Inventory 
Management. He holds a diploma in Supplies and Material 
Management from The Institute of Supplies and material 
Management of Sri Lanka.  

Mr. Suranga Jayaweera 
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Middle Management

Mr.  Jayalath  Dharmarathna

of Credit Management and partly completed the Diploma 

Ms. Radhika Perera 

Treasury , Corporate Secretarial and Credit and Recoveries. 

 

Mr. Nadeesha Liyanagamage 
Regional Manager - Colombo 

and Leasing. He has completed 9 years service at Singer 
Finance.

Mr. Saminda Peiris
Manager - Card Operations 

Saminda joined the Singer Finance team in May 2015 and currently managing the 
Card Centre operations.

banking including card operations, settlement and reconciliation, dispute & fraud 
management, electronic payments and retail banking operations. 
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Ms. Ruchira Mendis Mr. Muditha Gunawardena 

Mr. Dharshana Samaranayake Mr. Bimal De Silva 

Mr. Supun De Costa Mr. Hewage Premakumara 

Junior Management
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Junior Management

Ms. Nadeesha Sanjeevanie  Mr. Sanka Fernando 

Mr. Ajith Warna Mr. Viraj Wijeyesinghe 

Mr. Shervin Perera   Mr. Nilantha Rathnasiri
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Mr. Mahinda Wasala Mr. Dilan Shaminda

Mr. Samantha Herath Mr. Chaminda Peiris

Mr. Chandramohan Thanushan Ms. Lois De Alwis 
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Junior Management

Mr. Shanaka Sandaruwan Mr. Roshan Janaka 

Mr. Lalith Samarakoon Ms. Roviena Xavier 

Mr. Thilina Galapitagedera  Mr. Niloosha Sinhabahu 
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Mr. Indunil Kankanmge                  Mr.  Harsha Wijesuriya  
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938%
Credit Cards
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Rs. 237.8 Mn
Increased 
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Overview of the Financial Year 2016/17

“blessing in disguise“  in terms of increasing credit quality , the question as to the increase in 
Impairment charges for Loan and Other Losses compared to the prior year could annul  this 

impact on the increase in Impairment charges for Loan and Other Losses during the year under 

of the Company and of the industry at large.  Interest rates increased as a result of government 

increased, impacting both interest cost and business lending. 

Management Discussion & Analysis
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prior year) and Financing of Loans at Singer 

year), the overall income earning receivable 

Our Strategic Assets

Fitch Ratings Lanka Ltd 

a core competency of the Singer Group 

funding at competitive rates 

2015/16 LKR 2,113 Mn

Gross Income

LKR 2,610 Mn

at 424 locations of parent company 
Singer Sri Lanka

resources pool 

heritage brand name

Our History
Singer Finance is engaged in accepting 

loans credit cards and factoring to its 
customers. The Company has 23 regional 
branches and 2 service centres. In addition, 

channel of the parent company. Initially 

strength of its robust balance sheet and 
governance controls.

Corporate Information
Singer Finance, subsidiary of Singer (Sri 

of 2011. SFLP obtained the License from 

Finance Leasing business and licensed as 
a registered “Finance Company” in terms 

No.78 of 1988. The Company’s asset base 

19.50% of its shares are held by the public.

“Despite the challenges experienced 
during the year, the Company 
progressed in expanding the core 

21.5%, and other trust products in the 

Financing of Loans at Singer Mega 

year), the overall income earning 

Income of 21.9%.”
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Our Products

solutions that encompasses leasing, hire 

products, personal loans and business loans, 
credit cards and factoring. 

Leasing

Hire Purchase
The receivable balance in Hire Purchase 

Group Sales

portfolio, Group Sales has been posting 
a remarkable performance year on year. 
The net receivables from this portfolio 
reached Rs 626 million during the year 

synergies of the Singer brand, Singer 

private sector companies the facility to 
select any consumer product and pay for it 
in monthly instalments, the loan repayments 
are then deducted from their respective 
salaries and remitted to us by the employers. 

government school teachers and armed 
forces personnel constitute the key customer 
base in this segment. Customers enjoy the 

entire sum upfront. In order to leverage on 
group synergies further, a dedicated unit has 
been set up to handle Group Sales to ensure 

practices makes us the market leader in the 
group sales business. 

Revolving and Business Loans 

products introduced by the Company, as a 
result of system capabilities acquired from 

Revolving Loans are very much similar 

Commercial banks at present. This is 

customer has the capability to access a 
pre -approved loan amount at the time it is 

business purposes and meant to provide 
short term relief for small and medium scale 

security of post- dated cheques for the total 
number of monthly instalments from the 
bank account declared at the time of credit 
evaluation.

Deposits
During the early part of the year under 

increased in comparison to certain other 

raise debt through alternate sources at 

a decline in our deposits portfolio as a certain 
segment of customers seeking high rates 

Company and so did institutional investors. 

also caused a dip in deposit portfolios 

to rise and the Company has since adjusted 

as per Deposit value and tenure. Thus the 

year due to improved rates and focused 

SFLP is a Registered Finance Company, 

of the deposit division is located in Colombo 

to accept deposits.

‘Singer Muthu’ and Regular 
Savings Accounts
Singer Finance is steadily establishing a 

secure option for opening children’s savings 
accounts. The 160 year old Singer brand is 

services to our customers.  Normal Savings 

18 year of age, by declaring identity and 

interest rates for both Children’s and Regular 

convenience and mobility for the Savings 

introduced in the year 2017/18.

Credit Cards 
In 2015, the Company achieved the 

country to receive a license to issue a Credit 

both locally and internationally to purchase 
goods or services from any merchant that 
accepts cards as mode of payment.  Singer 

there is much opportunity for the Company 

available market segment. During the year, 
the Company surpassed a landmark in 

Management Discussion & Analysis
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Factoring

medium scale business that need to improve 
their liquidity could assign their invoices or 
post-dated cheques to the Company and 
acquire an advance from such assignments. 

level in the years ahead. 

Singer Mega
Singer Mega is one of the Parent Company’s 
many business channels and is the larger 

consumer durable products that are 
purchased on instalment basis from a Singer 

Finance remained focused on servicing 

traditional businesses such as Leasing. This 
business relationship has strengthened over 

in more than 18 Singer Mega Locations.

Money Exchange

strengthened this business segment by 

areas such as Embilipitiya, Tissamaharama, 

competitive market rates.

Key Challenges Our Response 

Challenges in Sustaining Optimal Spread  
It is of importance that the Company sustains its spread in order 

spread.
addition to the above, the term of these products are relatively short. Hence, 

keeping interest rate spread at an optimal level, thus achieving the objective of 
sustaining an optimal spread. 

The Company successfully raised three Debenture issues in 2013, 2015 and 

Challenges faced in Information Technology (IT)

systems to provide necessary Information required by ever evolving 
requirements of regulators and other bodies. In addition, the 
challenge of maintaining the IT system at the optimum operating 
level is a requirement for the Company to succeed in its operations.

the MIS reporting capabilities, adding value to its operations.  

Challenges due to Loan to Value Restrictions 

Vehicles being restricted to 50%, Motorbikes 70%, Commercial 
Vehicles (Lorries and heavy vehicles) 90% and Three Wheelers 

The Loan to Value restrictions for vehicles that have elapsed an year of 
registration is, 70%.
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Key Challenges Our Response 

individuals in certain positions, especially the talent pool for 
Marketing has a vacuum. 

process results in better retention ratio.

The Company also provides increased opportunities for all-rounders, i.e. 

being selected to respective positions.

Opportunities Our Response 

Market and Product Development With the reach of the parent company spanning every nook and corner of 

these products in the ensuing years.

Expected Economic Resurgence 

Country’s balance of payments being under constant stress  and 
high Government debt repayments have threatened economic 
stability , therefore, these corrective measures had to be taken by 
the authorities in the best interest of the Country.  Having regained 

more aggressively at the right time.

Threats Our Response 

Competition 

providing the same range of products and being present in most 

Leasing is considered to be a product for Finance Companies. 

them accordingly. In addition to above, the Company has spread its business risk 

Management Discussion & Analysis
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Financial Review 

under stress due to increase in government 

policy rates and bad debts increased amidst 

drought conditions and liquidity concerns.   

The Loan to Value restrictions placed by 

volumes. 

business products namely Credit Cards, 

Development arm of the Company the ability 

strengthening systems and processes and 

to reduce the IT risks of venturing too far 

one resulting in an additional charge of Rs 

adverse compared to prior year, due to 

and increase in Impairment charges, the 

discipline and focused cost controls across 

the enterprise contributed to reporting   

Basis of Preparation and 
Comparative Figures 
The basis of preparation of the Financial 

Statements are described under note No. 1.2 

to the Financial Statements. The accounting 

in the previous year. 

Statement of Comprehensive 
Income 
Gross Revenue 

Company constitutes interest income, fee 

and commission income, trading income and 

other operating income. 

Rs 2.418 billion compared to the same period 

million compared to prior year, Income from 

service charges amounting to Rs 75.7 million 

contributed most to the fee based income 

Rs 28.4 million, issue reimbursement fee on 

credit card Rs. 5.2 million and commission 

income Rs 3.8 million. Net trading income 

amounting to Rs 558,091/- relating to trading 

is attributable to a drop in selling activities. 

Other Operating Income mainly constitutes 

of loan loss recoveries; gain on translation of 

foreign currency and Other Operating Income 

from the credit card business. 
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Interest Income
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Components of Interest Income 
The main Interest Income earning products 

instruments held to maturity, income from 

interest and overdue interest.

Hire Purchase
Finance Leases
Loans
Financial Instruments held to Maturity
Placement with Banks
Inter Company Receivables
Over Due Interest

Rs. Mn
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year, the main contribution to interest income 

the increase in Leasing business. Income 

from Hire Purchase decreased by 58.9% 

to Rs 125.8 million. The Income from Hire 

Purchase decelerated due to the fact that 
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Rs 458.4 million, Financial instruments held 

Rs 39.4 million and overdue interest income 

to the prior year.  Inter Company receivables 

facilities at Singer Mega, a receivable balance 

a need basis, an interest is paid by the parent 

company to compensate for the same.

Interest Expense

Interest on Other Financial Liabilities Due to 

Customers

Interest on Bank Loans

Interest on Commercial Papers

Interest on Inter Company Payable

Interest on Debenture

Debenture Issue Cost

Interest on Bank Overdrasts

32.8%

15.6%
2.3%4%

42.1%

1% 2.2%

increased by Rs 290.9 Million (42.3% 

and the Industry at large due to increase 

in the cost of funds in the economy.   The 

Government increased policy rates tightening 

the monetary policy as a pre-emptive 

and to support the balance of payments. 

income on listed Debentures, resulted in this 

avenue of raising funds being temporary 

market.  During the majority of the year 

Deposit rates in order to be more competitive 

year end, amounted to Rs 9.273 billion 

Commercial Papers 1% , Inter Company 

parent company due to the parent’s superior 

access to competitive funding sources to 

the parent company compared to Singer 

Finance.

Net Interest Margin

2016/2017 2015/2016

Total 
interest 
income 
as a % of 
average 
earning 
assets (%) 12.65 13.55

Net Interest Margin (NIM) decreased 

marginally by 90 basis points to 12.65% 

amidst tightening pressure on margins 

due to increase in cost of funds.  Company 

 

317 as at end of 31st March 2017 compared 

to 298 as at 31st March 2016. Increments, 

higher bonus pay out compared to prior 

to supplement income generating activities, 

strengthen the recoveries and operational 

functions. 

Administration and Selling 
Expenses 

Card and Factoring. 

product promotional and advertising 

Allowances for Impairment 
charges for Loan and Other 
Losses  

provided Rs 70.5 million for bad and 

41.4 million, or 142% over the prior year.  

Majority of the impairment charges are 

accruing from the Leasing product as its, 

Financial Review 
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makeup constitutes 80% of the portfolio of 

interest earning receivables. The adverse 

and drought conditions)  and tightening of 

the high provisioning.  It should also be noted 

provisioning due to selling of re-possessed 

vehicles have increased compared to the 

prior year and as a result, the cumulative 

impact has required higher provisioning. 

due to arrears increasing and as a result the 

provisioning requirement increased. The 

the re-possessed assets are disposed or 

customer continues the facility by honouring 

2017/18. 

Value Added Tax on Financial 
Services 

109.3 million compared to Rs 69.8 million in 

the prior year.  The increase in value added 

to  15%. 

Income Tax Expense

as against Rs 206 million in the previous 

Total Comprehensive Income
The Company recorded a Comprehensive 

Income for the year amounting to Rs 369.8 

attributable to the long term investments 

mentioned above. If the costs related to these 

ended 31st March 2009 that the Company 

on record that the Company has reported 

thus, contributing to a cumulative retained 

earnings amounting to of Rs 1.1 billion (net 

of dividends paid and statutory transfers to 

reserves ) as of 31st March 2017. The focus 

to pay the shareholder a cumulative 

dividend of Rs 842.6 Mn since inception, 

of the Company’s value creation for the 

approved a dividend per share of Rs. 1.06 as 

31st March 2017 subject to the approval of 
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Net Profit
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Earnings per Share
The Company’s earnings per share for the 

2015/16. The marginal drop is due to the 

year. 

Price Earnings Ratio
The price to earnings ratio of the Company 

as at 31st March 2016. Price to earning ratio 

is a market prospect ratio that calculates 

the market value of a stock relative to the 

Company’s earnings.  The increase in the P/E 

earnings potential seen by the investors in 

the Company’s share. 

Dividends 

approved by the board of directors, subject to 

the approval of the Central bank of Sri Lanka.  

52% since inception. 
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Solvency 

2007 requires that a solvency test be carried 

out prior to the payment of dividends. The 

date of dispatch of the proposed dividend 

payment.

Return on Equity – (ROE) 

17.8%. Return on Equity has been computed 

average total equity as at balance sheet date.
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%

Assets
The total asset base increased by Rs 1.662 

billion from Rs 11.036 billion in 2015/16 to 

Rs 12.698 billion in 2016/17.  Main increase 

Rs 1.643 billion to Rs 9.305 billion and Loans 

to Rs 1,926 million.  Other debtors and 
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2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Loans and Advances 
Hire Purchase Receivables 
Lease Receivables

Rs. Mn

Liabilities

amounting to Rs 3.211 billion. Interest 

Rs 5.015 billion, this balance consists of Rs 

3.404 billion debenture liability and Rs 1.505 

amounting to Rs 478.1 million illustrated 

under note No. 14.2 to the Financial 

Company continuously makes arrangements 

Deposit Base
The Public Deposits and the Savings Deposit 

customers rightfully became highly rate 

conscious as a result of the rate competition 

trend by increasing rates above its other cost 

FD Market and this measure has resulted in 

Financial Review 
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Total Equity 
Equity increased by Rs. 123 million over the 

Dividends paid Rs.  248 million.

Capital Adequacy
SFLP has maintained a capital adequacy 

both the core capital and capital base stood 

at Rs 2.720 billion. With the core capital 

ratio being 19%. This ratio is one of the key 

factors that depositors and lenders of debt 

capital closely evaluate and the Company 

highest in the sector. 
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Net Cash Flow from Operating 
Activities 

spent Rs 1,060.3 million for operating 

increase in funds and advances to customers 

on Leasing and Loans Rs 1,678 million and 

Rs 502.1 million respectively,   Finance cost 

paid Rs 802.8 million, ESC paid Rs 29 million, 
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Net Cash Flow from Investing 
Activities 

invested Rs 39 million in acquiring property 

plant and equipment and incurred Rs 29.4 

million.

Activities

paid dividends amounting to Rs 246.7 million 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The net decrease year on year in cash and 

cash equivalents amounted to Rs 1.7 million. 

The cash and cash equivalent balance as at 

Accounting Policies 
The Financial Statements contained in 

this report are prepared in accordance 

the requirements of the Colombo stock 
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21.5%
Leasing
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Rs.1,644 Mn
Increased 
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Dear Shareholders, 

The Report on sustainability aims to provide 
a perspective on the Company’s philosophy 
on maintaining ethical management 

and sustainable environment for the future 

Company transacts its business, and the 
impact to  the environment and society.  

as Employees, Customers, Investors, 
Financiers, Competitors, Government, 
Regulators and the Community at large. 

about engaging these stakeholders and their 
interests. 

young Company having completed 13 

Company and its Management has been 

an inherited responsibility to ensure that the 
rich and time tested good practices of the 

as the environment. Over the years, our 

customers has been lovingly natured through 
the history of time. Employee development 

inculcated in the management culture of 

our responsibility. Lending a compassionate 

has been our Company’s Commitment. SFLP 
is of the belief that if sustainability is to be 

onus on us, to strengthen our stakeholder’s 

SustainabilityReport
Chairman’s Report on Sustainability

customers or suppliers. 

and landslides in various parts of the country 
is no doubt the outcome of ‘Global Warming” 
and disregard/overlook/negligence to create 

futile land of the Southern Province, the 

is engaged in a service business in providing 

carbon foot print and the environment could 

is an indirect contribution to the carbon foot 
print. It is, therefore, for the same reason that 

the environment and good business 

alone. as it requires the contribution of the 

been conscious of the Leadership role that is 

role. 

Dr. Saman Kelegama
Chairman 

02nd June 2017 

“Over the years, our 
responsibility towards 
our employees and 
customers has been 
lovingly natured 
through the history 
of time.” 
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of reducing the usage to a 

our carbon footprint.”

Sustainability Review  

recognising, measuring, disclosing and 

stakeholders for organisational performance 

business activities and strategy of the entity. 
In our approach throughout the Company’s 

our employees, customers, shareholders 
and all stakeholders, in every corner of the 

trends. 

Our Stakeholders
Stakeholders are the individuals or groups 

of our Company over time. They may 

our ability to achieve our objectives. 
The Company implemented strategies 

value encourages the Company to identify 
the stakeholder groups that can directly 

valued stakeholders across all internal 

every stage of our operations and planning, 
driven by Company’s sustainability strategy. 
We constantly seek feedback to learn and 
improve our systems and processes to 

Investors
Our investors, through the provision of equity 

on their investments through sustained 

embracing sound policies and procedures, 

requirements in the management and 
daily operations of the Company. Singer 
Finance has paid out a consistent dividend 
to its shareholders throughout its history. 

conferences, media releases and meetings.

Customers
Customers operate in a dynamic and 
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needs, the Company focuses more on better 

to meet their diverse needs. We take 
into consideration the primary interests 

formulating our products and services, terms 

managers, advertising and promotion, media 
releases, branch personnel, the corporate 

alternate channels, the call centre, surveys 
and other automated services. We utilise 
all insights gathered to further enhance 

services and strengthen our relationships.

Financiers

on a regular basis are an integral part of 
our sustainability and are a binding force 

transparency by providing easy access to 
information and ensured the integrity of 
all data. Our strong risk and governance 
control procedures are recognised by these 

Pressure Groups / Media
We lay much emphasis on social media 

services and sustainability initiatives. Singer 

and adherence to quality standards has 
ensured that it has never been involved in 

in future.

Competitors 

competitors and do not treat them as a 
threat. We recognise their contribution to the 
industry and treat them as a market force 

lack of competition builds complacency and 

and across the industry at large. We 
create a distinctive value proposition for 

rivals instead of competing on price points 

industry at regular meetings held by the 

to the industry are deliberated upon for the 
betterment of the industry. 

Government and Regulators

responsibility to the people of the nation and 

laid out by the government and regulators. 

hold the most compliant processes and 

consider our role in enhancing lifestyles as 
a contribution to the government’s agenda 
of improving the per capita income and 

national goals of reducing unemployment 

group consists of agriculture sector and rural 

underprivileged sectors to thrive and prosper.

regulatory bodies, and provides necessary 

no legal action or actions on regulatory 
non-compliance against Singer Finance 

Governance section of this report.

Community 

lives. We are then able to take appropriate 

and improve their socio-economic standards 

has a monumental impact on individuals 
and the communities they live in. For our 

and collective needs of communities, even 

economic barriers that they face. We believe 
it is our duty to ensure that our actions 

continue to enrich the lives of our people 

population is located in rural areas and 

solutions to improve their lifestyles.

Environment
The environment is our heritage and our 
inheritance. Therefore, it is important 

more sustainable and beautiful planet. 
We ensure that even our smallest actions 

the environment as a key segment in our 

reducing the usage to a minimum, so that 

emissions are monitored by installing energy 

SustainabilityReport
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Moreover, the architectural design of our 

computer screens are in use throughout the 
building.

Employees
Employees are the pillars of our Company 
and form the very essence of our competitive 
advantage. It is their drive, contribution and 

require us to take a proactive approach in 
order to derive a dynamic, people driven 

caring for and nurturing each and every 

ambassadors of progress for the future of 
Singer Finance and indeed the nation as 

engagement that upholds individual dignity 
and respect human rights. Our employment 
practices are based on attracting and 
retaining talent based only on merit. 
Employee skills are enhanced through the 
capability development agenda entailing 
customised training and development 
programmes.

have the potential to lead the Company in 

skill levels, there are many other factors that 

making recruitment and training decisions.

Singer Finance gives emphasis to career 
development of employees, encouraging 

as professional goals. This not only makes 

continued success of the Company. Even in 

for training and professional development 
initiatives of our employees.

Employees are the lifeblood of our business, 

activities.

subscription fees are paid to professional 
bodies on behalf of our employees for 

their careers and many managers in 

scheme.

are reimbursed up to predetermined 
amounts calculated according to 

the Company share the balance equally. 
We also provide hospitalisation and OPD 

and their immediate family members.

employees engaged in travel for 

responsibilities and the respective grade 
of employment.

staying at approved hotels of the 

are reimbursed.

in case of emergencies such as sudden 
illness, a death in the family, damage to 
homes due to natural calamities, urgent 

categories are eligible to apply for 

obtain a vehicle.

the employee serves the Company for 
a given number of years but the facility 
should be repaid only if the employee 
leaves the Company before the 

is mostly for post graduate studies.

course fee is reimbursed by the 
Company on the successful completion 

his/her family receive a donation of 

salary. In the event of the death of 
an employee spouse, child, parent or 
unmarried sibling, the employee is 
granted a sum of Rs. 25,000/-. The 
death donation fund is a contributory 
fund maintained by the permanent 
employees.

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC, our parent company  

year, in the year 2016.

Human Resource Philosophy
Singer Finance ensures that employees 

practicing a comprehensive HR policy that 

Planning

Development Organisation Changes

Relationship
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family stability, peace in the community, 
democracies that deliver for people and 

for productive jobs and enterprise 
development. Hence, as a company that 

opportunities for skills development and 
sustainable livelihoods for our employees to 

Singer Finance does not discriminate on the 
basis of race, age, creed, colour, religion, 

opportunity employer fully committed to 

discrimination.

Visually disabled Ranga Sampath Gunapala, 
aged 25 years, hailing from Padaviya is 
thriving as an employee of Singer Finance 

has been supported and encouraged in his 
job role by the Company and the employees. 

resilience and tenacity by performing his 

farming family, he has been able to enhance 

beyond his visual disability, by securing a 

Code of Conduct

code and ensure that employees reporting 

code of business conduct is signed annually 

amendments to the code.

We declare that employees recruited by us 
are over the age of 18 and that no individual 
has been coerced under pressure or threat 

tolerate child labour and compulsory labour 
in any form.

Complaints

guided procedure for any employee to 

unethical employment or business practices 

the governance hierarchy. Upon induction 
to the Group, all employees are taken 
through the policy’s procedures and assured 

Group takes necessary actions to prevent 
corruption or illegal activities and the 
management takes necessary actions on the 

procedures.

Grievance Handling and Sexual 
Harassment Policies

policy provides the right for employees to 

to the management and obtain a fair hearing. 

the distinct nature of a claim and provides 
disciplinary measures depending on the 
degree and sensitivity of the matter at hand. 
We ensure fairness and partiality at all times 

lodging the complaint.

Occupational Health and Safety
Our employees are considered the backbone 

by paying attention to ergonomics, quality 
of light and air, and so on. We also provide 

We encourage open dialogue in our 
Company as it leads to building trust 
amongst all employees. This is essential in 

uphold employee integrity and credibility. 
The ability to carry on a sincere and 
comprehensive dialogue about any issue in 
the Company is essential to building trust. 
High performing employees and teams are 
given recognition at the annual convention 

is determined through a transparent 
performance evaluation mechanism.

Approach to Employees’ 
Progression and Career 
Development

to the career development of employees, 
encouraging them to reach their personal 
and professional goals not just by making 

also ensuring the continued success of the 
Company. Each line manager assesses 

are analysed and incorporated into the 
training plan for the upcoming year through 
individual performance appraisals at the end 
of every year.  

Divisional Heads at Singer Finance are 
required to give a detailed account of their 
division’s training requirements in the third 
quarter each year. Department Heads 
are also responsible for assessing skill 
shortages of respective departments based 
on the annual performance appraisals 
and the needed skill requirements to 
successfully navigate future challenges. 

the Group Training Department decides on 
the training needed in the upcoming year. 
The Group Training Department schedules 
and implements tailor made programmes 
to address training needs, either through 

We provide internship opportunities to 

SustainabilityReport
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the Company and are given the necessary 

and in depth practical training.

Work Life Balance

at  Ugabay Pasikuda- Trincomalee during 
the year. This event provided the employees 

enjoyed by all.

Description 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Total Number of employees 317 298 256 245 200

 6.38  16.41  4.49  22.50  26.58 

Turnover per Employee (Rs.’000)  8,234  7,092  7,758  7,734  8,778 

 1,167  1,479  1,518  1,096  1,283 

 40,058  37,033  34,558  32,997  36,287 

Personal cost per Employee (Rs.’000)  1,116  945  893  717  767 

Description Grand Total

Key & Senior Management 5
Middle Management 13
Junior Management 24

8
Non-Management 267
Grand Total 317

Description 18-28 29-39 40-50 Grand Total

Key & Senior Management 1 3 1 5

Middle Management 1 5 5 2 13

Junior Management 3 15 6 0 24

2 5 0 0 7

Non-Management 173 86 8 1 268

Grand Total 179 112 22 4 317

Gender Diversity
Description Female Male Grand Total

Key & Senior Management - 5 5
Middle Management 1 12 13
Junior Management 4 20 24

1 7 8
Non-Management 47 220 267
Grand Total 53 264 317

of all employees of the organisation. Varying 

championship trophy at the Mercantile 

2016. Singer emerged champions. The 

to play a netball match against University 
Technology Mara in Malaysia.

Singer Finance recognises employee talent, 

boosts employee engagement. Employees of 
our Company participated in this event and 

category etc. 

Singer Finance employees represented the 
Company in the Rotract club of Singer Group. 
Several events are organised by the club 
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Society
Corporate Social Responsibility has become 
an important aspect of a Company’s long 

accessibility to corporate sustainability, 

elevates our performance. This also helps 

It also leads to fostering a responsible and 

distributed school stationery for the entire 
year for 150 students of Weheragalayaya 

donated a Photocopy machine to the school, 

enable the students to use the machine as 
a printer and for the school administration 

had to travel more that 12KM to get these 

over Rs.400,000/-.  

The Company, continued its commitment 
to meet the cost of Chathura Dilshan 

a student of Royal College Colombo for 
his monthly hostel fees, annual School 
development society fees and school fee 

by the Company. The Company enabled 
young Chathura to take the decision to 
come to Colombo and enter Royal College 
by sponsoring his education at a time he 
had decided to stay back in his village 
despite obtaining a high grade at the year 

progress and needs are continuously 

Finance and consistent aid is provided on a 
need basis.

Donations to Approved and other 
Charities 

gave many donations to approved and 

reasonable value. 
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Risk Management

Risk, to varying degrees, is present in all 
aspects of business activities; therefore, 

primary goal is to ensure that there is an 

both in monetary and non-monetary terms 
bearing in mind the socioeconomic role 
the Company plays in the development of 
the community. Given the ever-changing 
and challenging risk landscape, both 
internationally and locally, the Company 

procedures from its inception using its 

management in the Company is continuously 

corporate culture.

Risk Governance 
Risk Management Governance Structure of 

Risk Management Committee. 

Integrated Risk Management 
Committee (IRMC)
Primary purpose of the IRMC is to assist the 

Managers.

Risk Management Framework

deliver its core purposes, the Company 
has a comprehensive risk management 

and control the principal risks assumed 
in conducting its activities. These risk 

Operational and Liquidity. 

inherent risk in their areas of responsibility 
and their role in managing and monitoring 
risk, the Company facilitates ongoing training 

across functional departments. 

Credit Risk
In quantitative terms, credit risk is the 

book. Credit risk is the possibility of losses 

change in portfolio value, could arise due to 
default or deterioration in credit quality.

The major drivers of credit risk are default 
risk, concentration risk and correlation 
risk (concentration based on common 

simultaneous default). 

In order to strengthen the assets quality and 
optimise the capital charge, the Company 
undertakes comprehensive credit risk 

management is a critical component of risk 
management and essential to the long-term 
success of the Company.

Credit Risk Management

Management (CRM) Policy and Manual 
governing all credit risk-related activities of 
the Company. These policies and procedures 

programmes both at the top level and at the 
operational level.

The highest authority in credit approval 

make appropriate recommendations to the 

credit quality. 

The Company has structured and 
standardised the credit approval process, and 

proposals.

introduced to achieve an appropriate balance 

enhance the risk management capabilities to 
assist in achieving corporate objectives. 

Portfolio Management 
The need for credit portfolio management 
arises from the potentially adverse impact 

periodic monitoring, evaluating the 
portfolio quality by tracking the migration of 

and keeping close track of deteriorating 
credit quality. 

Segmentation
Loan portfolio of the Company consists 
of credit originating from all branches 

improve the assessment of the portfolio 
credit risk in a more proactive manner and 
help develop strategies for mitigating risk 

The Company continuously emphasises 

the Company’s systems and controls for 
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identifying, monitoring and addressing asset 
quality in a timely manner has been a key 
focus of management over the years.

Provisioning Policies 
Provision for non-performing loans 
and advances is made on the basis of a 

Standards and Regulations imposed by the 

policy of the Company is given under the 

Concentration Risk 

portfolio is an important aspect of credit 

name concentration, relates to imperfect 

sector concentration, relates to imperfect 

Name Concentration 
Name concentration is monitored and 
managed by stipulating prudential risk limits 
on various risks parameters such as single/

Sector Concentration 
Sector concentration risk is managed by 

Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that arises due to 
adverse change in market variables such 

equity and commodity prices. Mismatches 
carried in interest rates, currency and equity 

the level of volatility of interest rates, foreign 

market risk to the Company.

Market Risk Management

objectives of;

1.  Managing interest rate risk arising from 
day to day lending activities and deposit 

reporting of the same. 

is maintained at prudent levels and 

requirements.

Interest Rate Risk 

in the market interest rates may adversely 

the Company’s earnings in the near term. 

market interest rates.

The Company’s Net Interest Margin (NIM) 
is monitored for variance, and appropriate 
remedial action is taken. This initiative 
resulted in maintaining NIM at an acceptable 

analysis to measure the re-pricing risk of 
the Company’s assets and liabilities in order 
to assess the impact from interest rate 

Company takes measures to mitigate any 
possible adverse impact.

Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company 

arises from the possibility that market 
conditions prevailing at some points in the 

the liabilities.

The Company manages liquidity risk in 

maintaining a highly liquid assets portfolio in 

Liquidity ratios are continuously monitored 

requirements.

The Company has diverse sources of 

this segment. The Company also has the 

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC.

approach in its management of liquidity and 
has in place a healthy governance structure, 

ensure availability of adequate liquidity even 
under stress market conditions.

Operational Risk 
Operational risk is the risk of direct or 
indirect loss resulting from inadequate or 
failed internal process, people, systems 

business. IT security, possible internal and 

customers’ service quality, operational 
process reliability, recruitment and training-
related issues, social and environment 
impacts and regulatory compliance have 

Company’s operational risk.

Risk Management
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to operational risks, by implementing 
improved management and measurement 
approaches.

Operational Risk Management 
Framework
The Companies Operational Risk 

consistent application of risk policies, 
procedures and systems for identifying, 
measuring, monitoring, reporting and 
controlling operational risk but also ensures 

be evaluated for Operational Risk prior to 
implementation.

The Company has established an 
organisational culture that places a high 

management and accountability of 

functional heads.

validated and tested before implementation. 
Information Technology Division continues 
to implement Policies and Procedures to 
enhance and maintain information, security 
controls and systems.

In addition to the above, the Company 
implements Policies and Procedures 

critical information is made available only 
to selected employees. The ethical values 
that the Company propagates also stress the 

Business Continuity Plan 

manage crisis situations and to ensure the 
continuity of business across the Company.

that spells out the processes, procedures 

or restore the operations of the Company in 
the event of various categories of disasters, 
based on several levels of severity.

Singer Finance is maintaining a data 

event of any unforeseen disability of the 
main system, the Company is in a position to 
operate the IT system in this remote location.

a comprehensive disaster recovery centre 
is in place outside the Company premises 

continuing key operations in the event of 

Internal, External and Corporate 
Audit

crucial in the risk management process. 
Reports on the Group’s operational and 

The Company’s system of internal controls 
covers all policies and procedures, enabling 

be managed.

Insurance 
The Company’s risk mitigation programmes 
use insurance policies to transfer the risk of 
high severity losses arising from frauds and 

of the Company such as natural disasters, 

appropriate.

Compliance 

throughout the Company. 

regulations is the foundation of all our 
business activities. Compliance risk is 
the risk that the Company fails to comply 

regulations, supervisory requirements and 

Company’s business.

The Company seeks to bring the highest 
standard of compliance best practices 

professional standards of integrity and 

is responsible for ensuring management 

Compliance risk is managed through internal 

regulatory and other technical requirements 
relevant to the business.

Regulatory Compliance 
The Company considers compliance 

guidelines as core to its business and good 

responsible for regulatory compliance and 
also dissemination of regulatory instructions 

as stated in the Disclosure Report under 
Finance Companies Corporate Governance 
Direction No.3 of 2008 in Page No. 108
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Risk Management

Anti-Money Laundering (AML)/
Combating Terrorist Financing 
(CTF)
There has been considerable focus on 

legislative requirements related to anti-

and CTF, the Government of Sri Lanka has 

Customer Due Diligence (CDD) rules in 2007 

record keeping, monitoring and the 

CTF programme.

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)

the Company. Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC 

applies the standardised approach for Credit 
Risk, standardised measurement method 
for Market Risk and basic indicator approach 
for Operational Risk. On the above basis, our 

the minimum required by the regulator, 
providing a healthy ‘cushion’ against any 
potential losses.

Caveat

mitigation procedures have been discussed 
in this document, no assurance can be 
given that the Company is fully-protected 

Report, the best that can be achieved is 
reasonable management of risks through a 

evaluates and mitigates the negative impact 
in a timely manner at multiple levels. In this 

material risk factors have been adequately 
assessed and managed to ensure the 

business.
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Corporate Governance
Chairman’s Statement on Corporate Governance

The advent and progress of the Information 
Technology has been a pivotal factor in 

Governance should be rule based or 
principle based, and as Governance regimes 

inhibitions to the furtherance of business 

sustainability of the Company’s future no 

Management practices sound Corporate 

SFLP’s Management no doubt goes beyond 
the boundaries set by regulators to be 

encompassing principles based approach 

culture of safeguarding ethical practices.

functions, Credit Card Department, IT controls 

yard audits are conducted by the Internal 

Directors of the Company. The Company’s 
Key and Senior Managers are bound to 
sign the code of business conduct issued by 

and as per the section D.4.2 of the Combined 

Conduct  Ethics by the Company.

Governance) Direction No.03 of 2008 of the 

as the Corporate Governance code set by 

of Sri Lanka (SEC), the Company aims to be 

Practice on Corporate Governance issued 
jointly by SEC and the Institute of Chartered 

Corporate Governance and sections 7.10 and 
9 of the CSE listing rule is illustrated from 

contents of this section to learn more about 
the Corporate Governance practices of our 
Company. 

Dr. Saman Kelegama 
Chairman 

02nd June 2017 

“Your Company’s/
SFLP’s Management 
no doubt goes beyond 
the boundaries set 
by regulators to be 
compliant with the 
rules and regulations by 
encompassing principles 
based approach which is 
driven by the Company’s 
heritage culture of 
safeguarding ethical 
practices.”
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Governance Policy
Distinct corporate governance provides 

of everyone concerned by ensuring the 
Company adheres to accepted ethical 

over business processes shaped by 

betterment of other stakeholders form a 

Governance in Singer Finance intends 
to encompass the set of core values, 
accountability to shareholders, relationship 

of Singer Finance is committed to deliver 
a holistic service embedded by the highest 

corporate governance practices across all 
areas.   

the integral performance and long term 
sustainability.

Business Ethics 
The Company enshrines the highest ethical 
standards in the conduct of its business 

of business are in the best interests of 
stakeholders. Ethically correct conduct 

comprising integrity, honesty, fair play and 
loyalty pervade all actions. Transparency is 

has increased the level of transparency 

Company; and if so, disclose such 
interest in advance.

and price-sensitive information.

Finance Leasing (Corporate Governance) 
Direction No. 03 of 2008 issued by the 

Corporate Governance

In the ensuing section from page 61 to 107 

practices adopted and practiced by the 

Governance issued in year 2013 jointly by 

Commission of Sri Lanka and the Rule set 
out in Section 7.10 of the Colombo Stock 

Governance.

Shareholders

IRMC  
Ltd (Ultimate Parent 

Company)

Nomination 
Committee 

Remuneration 
Committee 

Related Party 

Committee of the 
Parent Company  

 

Parent Company 

Corporate  

Credit  
Committee  

IT Steering 
Committee 

Senior Management 

Employees

Customers 

Community 

Environment 

Corporate Governance
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regulations.

the person concerned or the Company’s 
image.

of a bribe, either directly or indirectly.

for political funds, either directly or 
indirectly.

harassment.

The Company has implemented a formal 

other employee, to raise their concerns. 

Directions on Corporate 
Governance.

Directions on Corporate Governance issued 

Governance issued by the Institute of 

issued in December 1997 and subsequently 

Practice on Corporate Governance 2013” 

Joint code issued in 2013 carried more 

corporates are encouraged to adopt in 
discharging their corporate governance 

Central Bank of Sri Lanka

administration, supervision and regulation 

encouraging and promoting the development 
of the productive resources of Sri Lanka.

directions, rules, determinations, notices and 

Sri Lanka under section 12 of the Finance 

namely, Finance Companies (Corporate 
Governance) Directions No.03 of 2008 and 
Finance Companies (Corporate Governance 

to be complied by the Registered Finance 
Companies.

Listing Rules of the Colombo 
Stock Exchange

Listing Rules to ensure the creation 

Securities can be issued and traded in 

stakeholders in the operation and conduct 
of the market. The CSE has issued rules 
on Corporate Governance under its ruling 
7.10 to be complied by the companies listed 

Company’s adherence to the aforementioned 
Directions on Corporate Governance as 
illustrated from page no 61 to 93.  

IT Governance 
IT governance process of the Company 

its strategic and operational objectives. 
IT governance is an integral part of the 

Management of the Company. Competent 

this need. Company investment in IT 
resources covers resources operated and 
managed centrally and resources deployed 
in various places. IT resources include ERP 
system, other related business systems, 

data communication systems. In the year 

IT governance to diverse functional areas 
of the Company is driven by certain core 

Compliance 

Streamlining of the credit management process and MIS reporting  
so that integrity is maintained across the value chain through near 
real-time processing.

Prudent Capital 
Expenditure built into the business plan and carefully scrutinised at the planning 

Parent Company.

CEO and Intermediate Parent Company.

Customer Convenience

their rental outstanding at any Singer Plus, Singer Mega, or Sisil 

touch points.

Green IT Protecting the environment by reducing print through migration to 



64

Corporate 
Governance to CBSL 

Status of Compliance

2.The 
Responsibilities 
of the Board of 
Directors

 
2 (1)

a) 

 

b) 

including the risk policy and risk management procedures and 

three years.   

plan and it is approved by Singer Asia and the Board of 
Directors.

c) Identifying risks and ensuring implementation of appropriate 
systems to manage the risks prudently; The Risk Portfolio of the 
Company is overseen   by the IRMC and its deliberations

d) 

e) 

Internal control systems and Management Information Systems

f) 

management

g) 

h) 

Complied

Complied

for two years)

Complied

Complied

Complied 

Complied
All key business activities are under the 
aegis of a  Senior  Manager

Complied

Complied

oversight function by way of regular 

network on a quarterly basis. The Group 

This Section (Page No. 64 To 79) Sets Out the Corporate Governance Principles Under CBSL Regulations and 
Compliance with the same

Corporate Governance
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Corporate 
Governance to CBSL 

Status of Compliance

i) 

practices, including: 

(i)  the selection, nomination and election of directors and 
appointment of key management personnel; 

j) 

succession plan for key management personnel.

k) 

l) understanding the regulatory environment;

m) 

auditors.

Complied
This direction is overseen by the function 

Complied
Although succession planning is not 

individuals are provided with adequate 
exposure. 

Complied

respective Senior Managers who are not 

areas.

Complied

understood by the Board of Directors. The 

Complied

 
2 (2) 

this Direction.

Complied 
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Corporate 
Governance to CBSL 

Status of Compliance

 
2 (3) directors, upon reasonable request, to seek independent 

professional advice to directors to assist the relevant director(s) to 

Complied
Any Board Director has the opportunity 
to  seek independent professional advice 

are 

 
2 (4)

meeting.

Complied

Resolution during the year under review as 
there was no necessity to do so. 

 
2 (5) reserved to it for decision to ensure that the direction and control of 

Complied

execution is stringently followed up by 

 
2 (6) likely to be, unable to meet its obligations or is about to become 

insolvent or is about to suspend payments due to depositors and 

Not Applicable 
Such a situation did not arise during the 
year under review 

 
2 (7) 

this Direction.

Complied

 
2 (8) undertaken by each director annually, and maintain records of such 

assessments.

Complied
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Corporate 
Governance to CBSL 

Status of Compliance

Meetings of the 
Board 

 
3 (1)

shall be avoided as far as possible.

Not Complied

under review 

 
3 (2) directors to include matters and proposals in the agenda for regular 

company.

Complied

regard by Directors.

 
3 (3)

meetings, a reasonable notice shall be given.

Complied

 
3 (4) in the period of 12 months immediately preceding or has not 

attended the immediately preceding three consecutive meetings 
held, shall cease to be a director. Provided that participation at the 

acceptable as attendance.

Complied

 
3 (5) responsibilities shall be to handle the secretarial services to the 

Complied

 
3 (6)

If the Chairman has delegated to the Company Secretary the function 

shall be responsible for carrying out such function.

Complied

 
3 (7)

Complied

throughout the period under review. 

 
3 (8) meetings and such minutes shall be open for inspection at any 

reasonable time, on reasonable notice by any director.

Complied
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Corporate 
Governance to CBSL 

Status of Compliance

 
3 (9)

deliberations; 

management measures adopted; and 

Complied

Composition of  
the Board 

 4 (1) Subject to the transitional provisions contained herein, the number of Complied

4 ( 2) Subject to the transitional provisions contained herein and subject 
to paragraph 5(1) of this Direction the total period of service of 

inclusive of the total period of service served by such director up to 
the date of this Direction.

Complied

4 (3) Subject to the transitional provisions contained herein, an employee Complied

4 ( 4)

at least one fourth of the total numbers of directors.

Complied
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Corporate 
Governance to CBSL 

Status of Compliance

director:

a) 

company;

b) 

audited balance sheet;

c) 

period immediately preceding the appointment as director;

d) 

e) represents a shareholder, debtor, or such other similar 

f) is an employee or a director or has a shareholding of 10% 
or more of the paid up capital in a Company or business 

i) 

ii) 

iii) 

4 (5) In the event an alternate director is appointed to represent an 

director.

Not Applicable 
There are no Alternate Directors appointed 
to represent  independent non-executive 
directors

 4 (6) 
to bring an objective judgment to bear on issues of strategy, 
performance and resources.

Complied

19 to 25
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Corporate 
Governance to CBSL 

Status of Compliance

4 (7) 

number of directors required to constitute the quorum at such 
meeting is present, unless at least one half of the number of 
directors that constitute the quorum at such meeting are non-

Complied

4 (8)
as such in all corporate communications that disclose the names of 

Report.

Complied 

4 (9) There shall be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for 

procedures in place for the orderly succession of appointments to 

Complied 

4 (10) 

appointment.

Complied 
Mr. Jagath Dissanayake  who was 

subject to election by shareholders at the 

4 (11) 
announce to the shareholders and notify the Director of the 

director or removal and the reasons for such resignation or removal, 
including but not limited to information relating to the relevant 

Complied 

Criteria to assess 

propriety of 
directors

 5 (1) Subject to the transitional provisions contained herein, a person 

Company.

Complied 

 5 (2) 
any other equivalent position in more than 20 companies/societies/
bodies corporate, including associate companies and subsidiaries 

1995.

Complied 
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Corporate 
Governance to CBSL 

Status of Compliance

Delegation of 
Functions

 6 (1) 

functions.

Not Applicable 

6 (2)
periodic basis to ensure that they remain relevant to the needs of the 

Complied 
This process is diligently carried out at each 

Board Meeting

each Board Meeting.

The Chairman 
and the Chief 

 7 (1) 

years commencing from January 1, 2009.

Complied 

 7 (2) 

ensure a greater independent element. The designation of the Senior 

Complied 

been appointed as the Senior Independent 
Director 

7 (3) Complied 
There is no relationship  between the 

disclosed

 7 (4) The Chairman shall: 

responsibilities; and 

manner.

Complied 

 7 (5) The Chairman shall be primarily responsible for the preparation of 

function of preparing the agenda to the Company secretary.

Complied 

7 (6) The Chairman shall ensure that all directors are informed adequately Complied 



72
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Corporate 
Governance to CBSL 

Status of Compliance

7 (7) The Chairman shall encourage each director to make a full and Complied 

7 (8) Complied 

7 (9) Subject to the transitional provisions contained herein, the Chairman, 
shall not engage in activities involving direct supervision of key 

Complied 

7 (10) The Chairman shall ensure that appropriate steps are taken to Complied 

7 (11) 

operations and business.

Complied 

Board appointed 
Committees

8 (1) 
set out in paragraphs 8(2) and 8(3) hereof. Each committee shall 

secretary to arrange its meetings, maintain minutes, records and 
carry out such other secretarial functions under the supervision of 

on the performance, duties and functions of each committee, at the 
annual general meeting of the Company.

Complied 

The Board  presents a report on the 

Audit 
Committee 

 8  (2) (a) 

or audit.

Complied

8  (2) (b) Complied

8  (2) (c) The committee shall make recommendations on matters in 

auditors from time to time;

(iii)  the application of the relevant accounting standards; and

(iv)  the service period, audit fee and any resignation or dismissal of 
the auditor, provided that the engagement of an audit partner 

from the date of the completion of the previous term

Complied
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Corporate 
Governance to CBSL 

Status of Compliance

8  (2) (d)

practices.

Complied

8  (2) (e)

provide non-audit services that are permitted under the relevant 
statutes, regulations, requirements and guidelines. In doing so, 

independence or objectivity.

Not Complied 

8  (2) (f) The committee shall, before the audit commences, discuss and 

including: 

relevant accounting principles and reporting obligations; and 

auditor is involved.

Complied

8  (2) (g)

annual report and accounts and periodical reports before submission 

(i)  major judgmental areas; 

(ii)  any changes in accounting policies and practices; 

concern assumption; and 

legal requirements.

Complied

8  (2) (h) The committee shall discuss issues, problems and reservations 

to be discussed in the absence of key management personnel, if 
necessary.

Complied

8  (2) (I)
letter and the management’s response thereto.

Complied 
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Corporate 
Governance to CBSL 

Status of Compliance

8  (2) (J)

of the internal audit department, and satisfy  itself that the 

actions are taken on the recommendations of the internal audit 
department;

internal audit department;

(iv)  Recommend any appointment or termination of   the head, 

internal audit function; 

(v)  Ensure that the committee is apprised of resignations of senior 

chief internal auditor and any outsourced service providers, 

members and outsourced service providers to submit reasons 
for resigning; 

(vi)  Ensure that the internal audit function is independent of the 

Complied

8  (2) (K)
investigations and management’s responses thereto;

Not Applicable 

year under review 

8  (2) (L) Not Complied

external auditors without the presence of 

8  (2) (M) The committee shall have: 

of reference; 

(iii) full access to information; and 

Complied 

the year under review 
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Corporate 
Governance to CBSL 

Status of Compliance

8  (2) (N)
discussed and shall record its conclusions in discharging its duties 
and responsibilities.

Complied 

8  (2) (O)

(i)  details of the activities of the audit committee; 

(ii)  the number of audit committee meetings held in the year; and 

(iii)  details of attendance of each individual member at such 
meetings.

Complied 

8  (2) (P)
or the head of the internal audit function) shall record and keep 
detailed minutes of the committee meetings.

Complied 

8  (2) (Q)

arrangements are in place for the fair and independent investigation 

Complied 

Integrated Risk 
Management 
Committee

3 (a) 
CEO and key management personnel supervising broad risk 
categories, i.e., credit, market, liquidity, operational and strategic 

committee.

Complied 

3 (b) The committee shall assess all risks, i.e., credit, market, liquidity, 

monthly basis through appropriate risk indicators and management 
information. In the case of subsidiary companies and associate 

company basis and group basis.

Complied 

quarter 

3 (c) 
management level committees such as the credit committee and 

by the committee.

Complied 

3 (d) The committee shall take prompt corrective action to mitigate the 

company’s policies and regulatory and supervisory requirements.

Complied 

the year under review

3 (e) The committee shall meet at least quarterly to assess all aspects of 
risk management including updated business continuity plans.

Not Complied 
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Corporate 
Governance to CBSL 

Status of Compliance

3 (f) 

corrective actions as recommended by the committee, and/or as 
directed by the Director of the Department of Supervision of Non-

Complied 

the year under review

3 (g) Complied 

Board, however, the deadline period of 

3 (h) The committee shall establish a compliance function to assess the 

rules, regulatory guidelines, internal controls and approved policies 

selected from key management personnel shall carry out the 
compliance function and report to the committee periodically.

Complied 

involved with Reporting) 

Related party 
transactions

9 (2) 

purposes of this Direction: 

has substantial interest.

Complied
There were no such transactions that gave 

under review.
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Corporate 
Governance to CBSL 

Status of Compliance

9 (4) 

party “more favourable treatment” than that is accorded to other 
similar constituents of the relevant establishment. For the purpose 
of this paragraph, “more favourable treatment” shall mean

a)  Granting of “total net accommodation” to a related party, 

accommodation” shall be computed by deducting from the total 
accommodation, the cash collateral and investments made by 

counterparty;

c)  Providing preferential treatment, such as favourable terms, 

d)  Providing or obtaining services to or from a related-party 

the performance of legitimate duties and functions. 

Complied

related party during the year under review.

Disclosures 10 ( 1) 

formats prescribed by the regulatory and supervisory authorities 
and applicable accounting standards, and that 

form, in Sinhala, Tamil and English.

Complied

in the annual report; biannual (unaudited) 

in all three languages and the quarterly 
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Corporate 
Governance to CBSL 

Status of Compliance

The Board 
shall ensure 
that at least 
the following 
disclosures are 
made in the 
Annual Report:

 10 (2)  (a) Complied

10 (2)  (b)

been designed to provide a reasonable assurance regarding the 

principles and regulatory requirements.

Complied

10 (2)  (c)
control mechanism in respect of any statements prepared or 

Complied

the Annual Audit but does not publish the 

10 (2)  (d)
company.

Complied

10 (2)  (e) Complied

10 (2)  (f)
in respect of each category of related parties and the net 
accommodation outstanding in respect of each category of related 

Not Applicable 

Related Parties during the year under 
review 

10 (2)  (g)
to its key management personnel and the aggregate values of the 

as remuneration paid, accommodation granted and deposits or 

Complied 

to Related Parties during the year under 
review
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Corporate 
Governance to CBSL 

Status of Compliance

10 (2)  (h)

taken to rectify any non-compliance.

Please refer the Disclosure Report under 

granted to and outstanding at any point 

10 (2)  (I)

to address such concerns.

Please refer the Disclosure Report under 

granted to and outstanding at any point 

10 (2)  (J) Complied

with  the Act and rules and directions 
issued by the Monetary Board , however a 

report  
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Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

Section 1:  
The Company

A Directors

A.1     
The Board

Principle 
of Code control the Company: -

Complied

Meetings of the 
Board

Complied

Responsibilities 
of the Board

the consistent performance being delivered by the same CEO and Key Management over a 
10 year period. 

controls, business continuity and risk management

placed to safeguard internal controls , ensure integrity of information,  business continuity 

monthly IT meetings 

Company.

activities: - This has been proven by the past track record and success of the Company. 
Sustainability is a core area of focus in the strategy formulation process of the Company.

Complied

. 

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

This Section (Page No. 80 To 102) Sets Out the Corporate Governance Principles Under Sec & ICASL Principles and 
the Extent of Compliance with the Same 
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Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

the business concerned. : This has been proven by the past track record and success of the 

and deliberates at length thus contributing to Compliance and Financial regulations. 

Complied

Professional 
advice to the 
Board

the Country, as applicable to the business enterprise. There should be a procedure agreed 
Complied

Company 
Secretary

Complied

Independent 
judgment of 
Directors

resources (including key appointments) and standards of business conduct.
Complied

Adequate time 

Directors
to ensure that the duties and responsibilities of Directors are satisfactorily discharged:- 

Complied

Training for 
Directors necessary: - 

requirements, regulatory requirements to be complied.  Directors are also , briefed on changes 

meetings.

Complied

A.2 Chairman 
and Chief 
Executive 

Principle 
of  Code 

decision :- 

authority and to prevent any one individual from possessing unfettered decision-making 
authority

Complied
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Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

Complied

A.3  
Chairman’s Role

Principle 
of Code 

Complied 

that:

participation of all Directors

board in a professional manner and ensures that each Director is given an opportunity to 
participate in the deliberations of the board.

alert to its obligations to all shareholders and other stakeholders. 

Complied

A.4  
Financial  
Acumen

Principle 
of  Code 

Complied

A.5 Board 
Balance

Principal 
of  Code 

Complied

Complied



Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC | Annual Report 2016/2017 83

Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

be ‘independent’:-

Complied

For a Director to be deemed ‘independent’ such Director should be independent of management 

independent judgment:-

Complied

Schedule H.

Complied
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Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

 

Mr. J.A Setukavalar 
Senior Independent Director

 
Independent Director 

credentials 

Compiled 

Compiled

Complied 
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Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

to the Company.

No Applicable 

Complied

minutes.

Complied

A.6  
Supply of 
Information

Principle  
of Code enable it to discharge its duties :- 

Complied

but information volunteered by management  may not be enough in all circumstances and 
Complied 

Complied
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Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

A.7 
Appointments to 
the Board

Principle 
of Code 

Compiled

 

Compiled 

considered.

Compiled 

shareholders 
Compiled

A.8     
Re-Election

Principle 
of Code  least once in every three years.

Compiled
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Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

reappointment  should not be automatic.

Association.

Complied

more than three years. The names of Directors submitted for election or re-election should 

shareholders to make an informed decision on their election.

at the AGM

Compiled

A.9  
Appraisal 
of Board 
Performance

Principle 
of  Code Responsibilities are satisfactorily discharged.

Complied

Complied

its Committees.
Complied

Report.
Complied
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Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

A.10     
Disclosure of 
Information 
in Respect of 
Directors

Shareholders should be kept advised of relevant details in respect of Directors Complied

Director

Company;

Director;

attended during the year;

Complied

A.11     
Appraisal of 
Chief Executive 

Principal 
of Code 

Complied

Complied

Complied

B   
Directors’ 
Remuneration

Principal 
of Code 
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Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

Complied

Complied

Report each year.
Complied 

Which might include the CEO.

Compiled 

The Remuneration Committee should consult the Chairman and/or CEO about its proposals Compiled

B.2 The Level 
and Make Up of 
Remuneration

Principle 
of Code 

individual performance. 

Compiled
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Corporate Governance

Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

The Remuneration Committee should provide the packages needed to attract, retain and 

necessary for this purpose:-

Complied

corresponding improvement in performance:-

Complied

The Remuneration Committee should be sensitive to remuneration and employment conditions 

salary increases:-

Compiled 

give these Directors appropriate incentives to perform at the highest levels:-

Complied 

Complied

In designing schemes of performance-related remuneration, Remuneration Committees Complied
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Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

pension contributions) their Directors’ contracts of service, if any, entail in the event of early 
termination. Remuneration Committees should in particular, consider the advantages of 

removal for misconduct, in initial contracts:-

Complied

performance.

Not Applicable 

responsibilities of their role, taking into consideration market practices. Remuneration for 

are granted, shareholder approval should be sought in advance and any shares acquired by 

and  role in the Company and taking into consideration market practices and recommendations 

Complied 

B.3 
Disclosure of 
Remuneration

Principle 
of Code 

Complied

Committee in the case of a Group Company) comprising the Remuneration Committee, contain  
Complied 
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Corporate Governance

Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

C.  
Relations With 
Shareholders

Principle 
of Code  
C.1

participation.
Complied

C.1. 
Constructive 
Use of the 
Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) 
and Conduct 
of General 
Meetings

participation.

The board ensures that shareholders are given an opportunity to participate by giving adequate 

Complied

C.1.1

the resolution.

Complied

C.1.2

report and accounts.

considered as a separate resolution.

Complied

C.1.3

Chairman.

at the AGM to answer the questions under their purview.

Complied

C.1.4
shareholders at least as determined by statute, before the meeting.

statute, in order to provide the opportunity to all the shareholders to attend the AGM.

Complied

C.1.5
procedures governing voting at General Meetings.

Complied
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Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

C.2 
Communication 
with 
Shareholders  

Principle  
of Code    
C.2

Complied

C.2.1 There should be a channel to reach all shareholders of the Company in order to disseminate 
timely information

Complied 

C.2.2
Shareholders:-

Compiled 

C. 2.3

Printed copies of Annual Report are provided to shareholders as per request or could be 

Compiled

C. 2.4 The Company should disclose the contact person for such communication Compiled

C. 2.5 
of shareholders, and this process has to be disclosed by the Company.

response to the particular shareholder.

Compiled

C.2.6 The Company should decide the person to contact in relation to shareholder matters. The Compiled
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Corporate Governance

Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

C.2.7
disclosed.

Compiled

C.3 Major  
and Material 
Transactions

Principle 
of Code 
C.3

Complied

C.3.1
a related party, involving the acquisition , sale or disposition of greater than one third of the 

the value of the Company’s  assets, Directors should disclose to shareholders the purpose 
and all material facts of such transaction and obtain shareholders’  approval by ordinary 

business carried on by the Company.

Complied 

D.  
Accountability 
And Audit

Principle 
of Code 
D.1

Complied

D.1  
Financial 
Reporting

D.1.1

information required to be presented by statutory requirements.

The Board is well aware of its responsibility to present regulatory and statutory reporting in a 

Complied
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Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

D.1.2

necessary; and

compliance controls and risk management, and have obtained reasonable assurance of 

Complied

D 1.3

Internal Control.

Complied
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Corporate Governance

Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

 D.1.4
other issues:

future.

Complied

D.1.5 Complied

D.1.6

the Company to notify shareholders of the position and of remedial action being taken.

Complied

D.1.7

It should be the responsibility of the Company Secretary  to keep a record on related party 
transactions and make necessary disclosures accordingly 

There should be a process to capture related parties and related party transactions. This 

transactions should be maintained by the Company;

Complied
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Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

transactions.

D.2 Internal 
Controls

Principle  
for Code 
D.2

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of Company’s objectives.

D.2.1 Complied

D.2.2 Company should have an internal audit function Complied

D.2.3 Complied

D.3  
Audit 
Committee

Principle 
of Code 
D.3

D.3.1

Committee are given in page No. 104.

Complied

D.3.2

balance Objectivity, independence and value for money.

Complied
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Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

D.3.3 Complied

D.3.4 The names of Directors (persons in the parent company’s committee in the case of a Group Complied

D.4  
Code of 
Business 
Conduct & 
Ethics

Principle 
of Code 
D.4 others.

D.4.1
Directors and members of the Senior Management Team and if they have such a Code, make 

Complied
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Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

if so, disclose such interest in advance.

D.4.2 Complied

D.5  
Corporate 
Governance 
Disclosures

Principle 
of Code 
D.5

established principles and practices of good corporate governance.

D.5.1

provisions of this Code.

 

Complied

Section 2: 
Shareholders

E Institutional        
Investors      

E.1 Shareholder 
Voting

Principle 
of Code 
E.1

Institutional shareholders have a responsibility to make considered use of their votes and 
should be encouraged to ensure their voting intentions are translated into practice.

 

E.1.1

Secretary

Complied
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Corporate Governance

Corporate 
Governance SEC & 

ICASL  
Code 

Status of 
Compliance

E.2  
Evaluation of 
Governance 
Disclosures

Code E.2 Complied

F    Other  
Investors      
Investing /
Divesting 
Decision  

Principle 
of Code 
F.1

Individual shareholders, investing directly in shares of companies should be encouraged to 
carry out adequate analysis or seek independent advice in investing or divesting decisions.

size and they are entitled with voting rights.  

Complied

F. Shareholder 
Voting

Principle 
of Code 
F.2

Individual shareholders should be encouraged to participate in General Meetings of companies 

exercise their voting rights.

Complied

Listing Requirements Section 7.10 on Corporate Governance Rules for Listed Companies 

Independent Directors

Disclosures Relating to Directors

Remuneration Committee
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Section Details of Compliance 

Board of Directors 
Non-Executive
Directors

7.10.1

Independent 
Directors

7.10.2 
(a) independent.

7.10.2 
(b) independence/ non-independence.

Independence.

Disclosures relating 
to Directors

7.10.3 
(a)

Names of Independent Directors should be disclosed in the Please refer pages 19 to 25.

7.10.3 
(b)

Director.

7.10.3 
(c) report on pages 19 to 25.

7.10.3 
(d) report on pages 19 to 25.

Remuneration 
Committee 
Composition

7.10.5 
(a)

independent.

Separate Committee to be formed for the Company or the 
Listed Parent’s Remuneration Committee to be used. for the Company.

Chairman of the Committee.

Function 7.10.5 
(b)

Function of the Committee. The Remuneration Committee Report sets out the 
functions of the Committee.

Disclosure in the 
Annual Report

7.10.5 
(c) Names of Directors comprising the Remuneration 

Committee

Statement of Remuneration policy

Please refer page No. 105.

Please refer page No. 113.

Please refer page No. 173.

Audit Committee
Composition

7.10.6 
(a)

independent.
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Section Details of Compliance 

Separate Committee to be formed for the Company or the 
Listed Parent’s Committee to be used. Company.

Chairman of the Committee.

Chairman or one member of the Committee to be a member 
of a recognised professional accounting body.

 CEO and CFO attends by invitation.

Function 7.10.6 
(b)

(b) Function of the Committee.
functions of the Committee.

Disclosure in the 
Annual Report

7.10.6 
(c)

determination

Committee in the prescribed manner.

Please refer page No. 104.

Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee

Composition 9.2.2  The Committee comprises of three Independent

9.2.3 Separate Committee to be formed for the Company or the 
Listed Parent’s Committee to be used.

Committee of the parent Company to function as 

Committee

Function of the Committee.

Committee Report sets out the functions of the 
Committee.

Disclosure in the 
Annual Report

9.3.2. (c)
Committee in the prescribed manner. Committee report on page No. 116.

Corporate Governance
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Name of Director Status of Directorship No of 
Meetings 
Eligible

No of 
Meeting 

Dr. S. Kelegama 11 11

11 11

Mr. Russell De Mel 11 11

Mr. John Hyun  11 08

Mr. G.J Walker 11 01

03 01

Mr. N. K . J. Dissanayake  
Joined on the 1st of July 2016

08 07

Mr. Janaka Mendis 11 08

11 10

Mr. S.Ramanathan 03 02

10 07

Mr. Chandana Samarasinghe
Joined on the 5th of May 2016 

03 03

Joined on the 5th of May 2016
01 11

Mr. Iman Perera 
Joined on the 5th of May 2016

03 04

Board meetings and circular 
resolutions 

Company objectives and identify possible 

held at Singer Finance and 22 circular 

Key areas to be discussed are included for 

liberty to incorporate matters in accordance 
to the nature of importance and urgency.   

the attendance of each Director.

behalf of Mr. John Hyun 

Mendis participated for three meetings on 
behalf of Mr. Janaka Mendis and on one 
other occasion in the presence of Mr. Janaka 
Mendis by invitation

to Mr. Joe Kan and Mr. N.J.K Dissanayake 

Mr. Joe Kan and one meeting on behalf of Mr. 
N.J.K Dissanayake

participated for seven on behalf of Mr. Gavin 
Walker 

ten meetings by invitation ( as he is the Chief 

Board Sub Committees

responsibility of managing the Company 

directions.

Finance have being delegated some 

committee is headed by an Independent 
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appropriate adherence to the governance 
practices are ensured through sub 

overall Company objectives in the setting of 

1. Audit Committee    

to conduct investigations apposite to 

communication to the shareholders and the 
public.

Singer Group serves  as its Secretary  they 
are namely,

  
Chairman / Senior Independent Non-

 

(Secretary) 
Head of Risk SSL

primary duties and responsibilities of the 

therein.

The committee held seven meetings during 

Name of Director Status of Directorship  No
 of Meetings
 Eligible

No of Meeting 
Attended 

07 07

Mr. Russell De Mel 07 07

Mr. Priyanjith Meegoda Secretary to the Committee 07 04

2. Integrated Risk Management 
Committee (IRM)

responsibility.

parameters

concerning the Company’s risk parameters 

and particular risk or compliance 
management practices of concern to the 
committee

plans for mitigation of the material risks 
faced by the various business units of the 
Company.

compliance throughout the Company.

Integrated Risk Management committee 

Name of Director Status of Directorship No of 
Meetings 

Eligible

No of 
Meeting 

Attended 

Mr. Russell De Mel 03 03

03 02

Director / CEO 03 02

Head of Finance 03 02

Mr. Priyanjith Meegoda Head of Risk Management 03 01

Finance Director 03 00

Mr. Iman Perera 03 03

Credit Manager 03 03

Manager Financial Reporting and Compliance 03 03

Mr. Niranjan Sethunga Senior Recovery Manager 03 02

Mr.Manoj Kumara Senior Operations Manager 03 03

group acts as the secretary to the committee.

Terms of Reference (TOR) governs the 

Membership, Meetings to be held, Duties and 
reporting responsibilities of the committee. 
Number of meetings held and attendance 
of individual Directors of the Committee is 
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Remuneration Committee
The Committee mainly aims at remuneration 
and perks of the Chairman, the Chief 

and it comprises of , the Chairman of the 

No of meetings held and attendance of the 

Name of Director Status of Directorship No of 
Meetings 

Eligible

No of 
Meeting 

Attended 

Gavin J Walker Chairman 02 02

Dr. Saman Kelegama 02 02

02 01

Mr. Russell De Mel 02 02

Group CEO 02 02

02 02

Board Nomination Committee
The Committee proposes suitable charters 
for the appointment and re-appointment of 

Director chairs the committee and the 

the Committee. No of meetings held and attendance of the each 

Name of Director Status of Directorship No of 
Meetings 
Eligible

No of 
Meeting 
Attended 

Dr. Saman Kelegama Chairman 02 02

02 01

Secretary to the Nomination Committee 02 02

Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee

on Related Party Transactions issued by the 

Lanka (the “Code”) and Section 9 of the Listing 

terms of the Code. In terms of section 9.2.3 

the parent company and the subsidiary are 
listed entities, the Related Party Transactions 
Committee of the parent company may be 
permitted to function as the Related Party 

subsidiary.  Sighting this section of the listing 

parent Company to function as the Related 

of Singer Finance is also a member of the 



106

Corporate Governance

Name of Director Status of Directorship No of Meetings 
Eligible

No of Meeting 
Attended 

Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi 02 02

Mr. Gavin J. Walker 02 02

Mr Ranil De Silva 02 02

02 02

02 01

Name of Director 

Mr. Deepal 
Sooriyaarachchi 

He is a Past President of the Sri Lanka Institute of Marketing, and a Past Commissioner of Sri Lanka Inventors Commission. He had 

Mr. Gavin J. 
Walker 

Mr Ranil De Silva 
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Name of Director 

Singer Group of Companies on 1st July 2010.

Setukavalar 

Chairman of its Finance Committee. 
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Disclosure Report under Finance Companies Corporate

Governance Direction No. 3 of 2008

Finance Companies Corporate Governance 
Direction No.3 of 2008 and Finance 
Companies Corporate Governance 

out the Corporate Governance Guidelines and 

This report aims to disclose a selected set of 

Reporting to Central Bank 

on a timely manner and  that there are 

due to late submission.

aforementioned prudential returns and 
other information  submitted  to the 

accurate information and does not 
include any material and intentional 
misstatements.

submitted to the Financial Intelligence 

Lanka has been submitted on a bi 
monthly basis as per requirement.

Disclosure under Direction No.3 
of 2008

to take any corrective action on non-
compliance during the period under 

company’s risk management, or non-

and directions that have occurred that 
required communication to the Director 
of the Department of Supervision of 

for an instance of Non Compliance in 
relation to Direction No.4 of 2006/1 

Deviations with the Act, Rules and 
Directions 
Under the Finance Companies (Single 

the value of unsecured accommodations 
granted to and outstanding at any point of 

in the Credit Card product. Please refer Page 
No. 79 (section 10(2) (h)) for more details. 

Measures taken by the Company 
to Address the Reported Deviation 

of the Capital funds as per the Finance 

based on the fact that the nature of the Credit 
Card product is such that a limitation of 

viability of this product. The Company is also 
in a position to obtain a guarantee to secure 
the credit card transactions in the event the 

R.S Wijeweera 

J.A Setukavalar

Thushan Amarasuriya
Head of Finance  

Suranga Jayaweera
Manager Financial Reporting 
and Compliance 

Colombo
02nd June 2017
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Audit Committee Report

Preamble

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC so as to provide 
additional assurance on the reliability of the 
Financial Statements through a process of 

discharging their responsibilities on ensuring 

communications to the shareholders and the 
public.

Composition of the Committee 

R. De Mel. The Head of Risk Management 
functions as the Secretary to the Committee. 
Head of Finance and Manager Financial 
Reporting & Compliance represent the 

managers attend the meetings by invitation.

Responsibilities and Duties of the 
Committee

of the Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC and to 

Corporate Governance requirements.

The Committee also provides a forum for 

and internal control risks. 

business and internal control risks and 

remedial measures. 

the Quarterly Financial Results to ensure 

Ltd, an audit is carried out at least once a 
year by corporate auditors.

any internal policy on code of conduct of its 
employees. Thus the committee ensures 

appropriate and timely information to the 

Internal Audit 
The internal audit function of the branches is 

division of the parent company headed by 
the Head of Risk Management. The internal 

regulations and the Company’s accounting 
and operational policies. 

Meetings of the Committee 

also discussed at the meeting held on 29th 
May 2017. The minutes of the meetings 

Directors for information and necessary 
action.

controls and procedures are in place to 
provide reasonable assurance that the 
Company’s assets are safeguarded and that 

monitored. 

External Auditors 

services provided by the auditors to ensure 
that the provision of these services do not 
impair their independence.

March 2018 subject to the approval of the 

Finance Companies (Corporate 
Governance) Direction No.3 of 
2008
In terms of the Section 8 (2) 1 of the above 

attend meetings upon the invitation of 

31st of March 2016 and on the 29th of May 
2017.

Conclusion 

served on the audit committee during the 
year for their valuable contribution to the 
deliberations of the committee. 

Mr. J.A Setukavalar

Colombo
02nd June 2017
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Board Nomination Committee Report

Role of the Committee
The main role and responsibilities of the 
Committee are to propose a suitable charter 
for the appointment and re-appointment 

appointments and re-appointments. 
Such Charter shall cover areas such as 

Company etc.

competencies (including the skills, 

regard to any changes if necessary.

Composition and Quorum

Director of the parent company functions as 
the Secretary to the Committee.

Meetings and Activities
The Committee met once during the year 

Conclusion

in the committee during the year for their 
contribution to the deliberations of the 
committee.

Dr. S. Kelegama

Colombo
02nd June 2017
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Integrated Risk Management Committee Report

Role of the Committee
The main role and responsibilities of the 

its oversight responsibilities for all aspects 
of risk management. In this connection the 

such as credit, market, liquidity, operational 
and strategic risks through appropriate risk 
indicators and management information.

In addition to the above, the Committee 

Management Committee:

determined risk parameters.

concerning the Company’s risk appetite 
and particular risk or compliance 
management practice of the Company.

plan for mitigating of the material risks 
faced by the various business units of 
the Company.

of risk management and regulatory 
compliance throughout the Company.

Composition and Quorum

members of the Committee during the year 

Mr. Russell De Mel 

areas of the Company. Group Head of Risk 
Management functions as the Secretary to 
the Committee.

members.

requires their presence.

Meetings and Activities
The Committee met three times during the 

out its responsibilities, that the Company is 
in the business of taking risk. The aim of the 
Company and the Committee is therefore 
not to minimise risks but to optimise it by 
ensuring that risks being taken are, properly 

relative to the scale and type of business, 

and earning an appropriate return.

Policy of the Company.

of minutes and provides recommendations 

is taken on outstanding matters.

Committee) 

requirements the Company established an 

comes under the aegis of the IRMC. The 
Chairman of this committee is the Chief 

Reporting and Compliance serves as the 
Secretary. The committee also comprises 
of the Head of Finance, Head of Risk 
Management, Operations Manager, Manager 

Minutes of the quarterly meetings are 

The Committee met three times during the 

Conclusion

meeting the challenges of risk management 

task the above mentioned Risk Management 
Committee assesses the credit, market, 
liquidity, operational and strategic risks on 
a regular basis through appropriate risk 
indicators and management information.

Mr. Russell De Mel 
Chairman - Integrated Risk Management 
Committee

Colombo
02nd June 2017
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Credit Committee Report

Purpose
The Credit Committee (the ‘Committee’) of 
Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC (the ‘Company’) 

management of the Company’s credit 

and the Company’s responses to trends 

of Management’s actions to ensure the 

and the Company’s credit-related policies.

Committee Authority and 
Responsibilities
In performing its oversight responsibilities 
as set forth above, the Committee shall 
oversee Management’s establishment 
of policies and guidelines, to be adopted 

shall oversee management’s administration 

guidelines. The Committee shall oversee 
Management’s establishment of appropriate 
systems (including policies, procedures and 
management committees) that support 
measurement and control of credit risk, and 

strategies, policies and procedures for 
managing credit risk, including credit quality 
administration, and the establishment and 

The Committee shall oversee Management’s 

portfolio, including Management’s responses 
to trends in credit risk, credit concentration 
and asset quality, and shall receive and 

policies, procedures and tolerances.

Mr. Iman Perera

Mr. Thilan Rupasinghe

Conclusion

meeting the challenges of credit evaluation 
and the Management of the Company’s credit 

the year for their valuable contribution to the 
deliberations of the Committee.

For and on behalf of the Credit Committee.

Mr. Janaka Mendis
Chairman - Credit Committee

Colombo
02nd June 2017 
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Remuneration Committee Report

The Remuneration Committee consists of 
The Senior Independent Director, a Non-

to the Committee by Invitation. Group Chief 

by invitation. The Committee is chaired by 

by providing the relevant information and 
participating in its analysis and deliberations.

The scope of the Committee is to “look 
into fees, remuneration and perquisites 

Company and approve recommendations 

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC.

pertaining to the remuneration and 

Company. 

packages is to attract and retain a highly 

packages should provide compensation 

the business performance and long-term 
shareholder returns.

The Committee meets from time to time and 

comparative companies. The Committee met 

contributions to the deliberations of the 
Committee.

Mr. G.J Walker
Chairman - Remuneration Committee

Colombo
02nd June 2017
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Directors’ Statement on Internal Control

Responsibility 

42 of 2011; Finance Companies (Corporate 
Governance) Direction No.03 of 2008; the 

Internal Control.

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC (‘the Company’) 

such a system is designed to manage the 

the risk of failure to achieve the policies 
and business objectives of the Company. 

can only provide reasonable but not absolute 
assurance against material misstatement of 

process for identifying, evaluating and 

the Company and this process includes 
enhancing the system of internal controls 

environment or regulatory guidelines.  The 

of Company on the Directors’ Statement 
on Internal Control issued by the Institute 

system taking into account principles for the 
assessment of internal control system as 
given in that guidance.

of internal controls in place is sound and 
adequate to provide reasonable assurance 

and that the preparation of Financial 

principles and regulatory requirements.

the implementation of the policies and 
procedures on risk and control by identifying 
and assessing the risks faced, and in the 
design, operation and monitoring of suitable 
internal controls to mitigate and control 
these risks.

Key Features of the Process 
Adopted in Applying and 
Reviewing the Design and 

System on Financial Reporting
The key processes that have been 

integrity of the system of internal controls 

Company’s daily operations and that the 
Company’s operations are in accordance 

policies and business directions that 
have been approved.

Company  checks for compliance 

systems on an ongoing basis using 
samples and rotational procedures and 

carried out on all units and branches, 

by the level of risk assessed, to provide 
an independent and objective report. 

Findings of the internal audit are 

Division, regulatory authorities and 
management, and evaluates the 

risk management and internal control 

on the scope of audits and quality of 

of the Company.  Further, details of the 

Committee of the Company are set out 

during the ensuing year. 

procedures and controls that are 

disclosures of the Financial Statements 

Department continued to verify the 

of these procedures and controls on an 
ongoing basis.

reporting system of the Company has been 
designed to provide reasonable assurance 
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and the preparation of Financial Statements 

Standards and regulatory requirements of 

Review of the Statement by 
External Auditors

above Directors’ Statement on Internal 

Company for the year ended 31 March 2017 

come to their attention that causes them to 
believe that the statement is inconsistent 

Company.

J.A Setukavalar

J. Mendis
Director 

     
R.S Wijeweera
Director/CEO

Colombo
02nd June 2017
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Board Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee Report

Composition of the Board Related 
Party Transactions Review 
Committee

from 25th February 2016 in terms of the 

Transactions issued by the Securities & 

“Code”) and Section 9 of the Listing Rules of 

from 1st January 2016 is mandatory in 
terms of the Code. In terms of section 9.2.3 

the parent company and the subsidiary are 
listed entities, the Related Party Transactions 

may be permitted to function as the Related 

the subsidiary.  Sighting this section of 

Singer Finance have resolved to permit the 

Committee of the Company and appointed 

Directors serve on the Committee. 

Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi - Chairman (IND)

(NED)

Mr Ranil De Silva (IND) 

Finance (Lanka) PLC)

The above composition is in compliance 

The Finance Director of the parent 
company functions as the Secretary to the 

Committee. 

Meetings

this meeting is given in the table on page No.  

Role and Responsibilities
The mandate of the Committee is derived 
from the Code and the Rules and includes 

1.  Developing a Related Party Transaction 

the Code and the Rules for adoption by 

and its listed subsidiaries. 

Related Party Transactions (“RPTs”) in 

Code

Immediate Market Disclosures and 

Code and the Rules. 

Transactions (RPT’s)

1.  Relevant information to capture RPTs 
is fed into the Company data collection 
system. 

the applicable regulatory requirements 
relating to the reporting of RPTs

3.  Key Management Personnel (KMPs) and 

their Close Family members (CFMs) are 

NIC numbers and business registration 
numbers. This information is in the 
system. 

CFM details on a half yearly basis or as 

a material change. 

to the Finance Director of the parent 

Focal Point, for this purpose. 

of the parent company to meet the 
regulatory requirements if required.

Review Function of the Committee

15th November 2016. Further it has 

on the RPTs published in the Note No. 35 to 
the Financial Statements. 

Reporting to the Board

members to have access to same. On behalf 

Deepal Sooriyaarachchi 

Colombo, Sri Lanka 
02nd June 2017
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Board of Directors Communication Policy

Policy Statement
Singer Finance ( Lanka) PLC (the “Company”) 
values the input and insights of all its 
stakeholders, including lenders , creditors 

communication strengthens the role of the 

as an active, informed and engaged body.  To 
facilitate communication, this Policy outlines 

Communications to the Board
Stakeholders and other interested parties 

the independent directors, or any individual 

address, 

The Company Secretary 
Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC 

Colombo-02 

Procedures for Handling 
Communications to the Board

communication   regarding   legal,   ethical   
or   compliance   issues   by management 

Secretary to be potentially material to the 
Company.  

communications of a personal nature or not 
related to the duties and responsibilities  of  

junk  mail  and  mass  mailings, business 
solicitations, opinion survey polls or any 

Secretary  to be immaterial to the Company.

for the receipt, retention and treatment 
of complaints received by the Company 
regarding accounting, internal accounting 
controls, auditing matters, fraud and 

harassment/ misconduct, racial or religious 

anonymous submission by employees or 
any other concerned persons of  concerns 
regarding questionable practices or events 

progress and reputation.
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99.7%
Factoring
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Rs.57.8 Mn
Increased 
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Financial Calendar  - 2016/17

31st May 2016

Ninth Annual General Meeting 30th June 2016

20th June 2016

1st Quarter  
For the three months ended 30th June 2016  
(Unaudited) 11th August 2016

2nd Quarter  
For the six months ended 30th September 2016 
(Unaudited) 15th November 2016

3rd Quarter  
For the nine months ended 31st December 2016 
(Unaudited) 15th February 2017

4th Quarter  
 

(Unaudited) 31st May 2017

Annual Report & Annual General Meeting  

02nd June 2017

27th June 2017

23rd June 2017

Proposed Financial Calendar 2017/18

 
For the three months period ending 30th June 2017 
(Unaudited) August 2017

 
For the six months period ending 30th September 2017 
(Unaudited) November 2017

 
For the nine months period ending 31st December 2017 
(Unaudited) February 2018

 
 

(Unaudited) May 2018
 

(audited) June 2018

Eleventh Annual General Meeting June 2018
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors on 

the 

31st March 2017.

Review of the Year

Principal Activities

durables under loan scheme, factoring business including invoice 
discounting,  granting loans including Micro Loans and credit card 
business.

Independent Auditor’s Report

Financial Statements
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017 are 

of 2007. 

The Financial Statements duly signed by the Directors are provided on 

Accounting Policies
The accounting policies adopted in preparing the Financial 
Statements are provided in detail in the notes to the Financial 
Statements on pages 132 to 142. The accounting policies adopted are 

Property, Plant & Equipment

million (including Capital Working Progress) (2015/16, Rs. 64.1 

on renovating and upgrading leasehold premises. Further Rs. 17.9 

Details of Property, Plant and equipment and their movements are 
given in note No. 20 to the Financial Statements. 

Intangible Assets

million. Details of intangible assets are given under note No. 19 to the 
Financial Statements.

Directors’ Responsibilities
The Statement of the Directors’ Responsibility is given on page 
No.126.

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Direction No 3 of 2008 and Finance Companies 

pages 61 to 107 describes the good corporate governance principles 
adopted by the Company. 
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors on 

the 

2017 2016

 Rs. Rs.

depreciation amounts to 568,213,878        646,812,860

198,384,575         205,958,126   

369,829,303       440,854,734

  1,056,934,366         845,509,112

Final dividend of Rs. 1.5 per share (2015/16) - (Rs. 1.25 per share in 2014/15) 248,000,001 206,666,668

Leaving a total available for appropriation of 1,178,763,668 1,079,697,178

Transfer to Reserve fund 18,491,465            22,042,737 

Transfer from investment fund          -

First and Final Dividend Proposed    175,253,334 248,000,001

     (1,609,346)    1,000,104

       450,617    (280,029)

Making a total appropriation before Other Comprehensive Income 192,586,070 270,762,813

1,161,430,932 1,056,934,366         

Dividends

of the dividend payment.

Reserves
The Company’s Reserves and Retained Equity as at 31st March 2017 
amounted to Rs. 1,275 million vs Rs. 1,152 million as at 31st March 

Changes in Equity in the Financial Statements.

Stated Capital

Details and movement of the stated capital are given in Note 28 to the 
Financial Statements on page No. 158.

per Ordinary Share for the year ended 31st March 2017, for payment 
on 23rd June 2017.

Statutory Payments
The declaration relating to statutory payments is made in the 
Statement of Directors’ Responsibility on page 126.

Directors Interests and Interest Register

Note 36 to the Financial Statements on page No. 173 and have been 

Board Committees
Audit Committee

Mr. Russell De Mel 

Mr. M.M.C. Priyanjith (Secretary)

requirements of Finance Companies (Corporate Governance) 
Direction No. 03 of 2008 and Finance Companies (Corporate 
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Integrated Risk Management Committee

 
Chairman

 
Secretary

 

 
Head of Finance

 

 
Senior Credit Manager

 
Manager Financial Reporting and Compliance

The Report of the Integrated Risk Management Committee on 
page No. 111 sets out the manner of compliance by the Company 

(Corporate Governance) Direction No. 03 of 2008 and Finance 

Remuneration Committee

 
Chairman

Dr. Saman Kelegama 

 

 

 
Secretary

By Invitation

The Report of the Remuneration Committee on page No. 113 
contains a statement of the remuneration policy. The details of the 

Financial Statements on pages 144 and 173.

Board Nomination Committee

Dr. S. Kelegama 
Chairman

 

 

 
Secretary

sets out the manner of compliance by the Company in accordance 

Related Party Transactions Review Committee

company,

Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi 
Chairman

 
Secretary

Committee on page No. 116  sets out the manner of compliance by 
the Company. 

Directors’ Indemnity and Insurance

the Company.
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors on 

the 

Share Information and Substantial Shareholdings
The distribution of shareholding, Public holding percentage, market 

Earnings per share, dividend per share, dividend payout and net 
assets value per share are given in the Financial Highlights of this 

Retirement, Re-election and Appointment of 
Directors

Committee of the Company has approved the appointment of Mr. 

recommended for re-election.

on 1st July 2016, and being eligible, is recommended for election. 

Directors’ Interest in Ordinary Shares and 
Debentures

Name of the Director

Shareholding Shareholding 
Debenture

holding 
Debenture

holding

31.03.2017 01.04.2016 31.03.2017 01.04.2016

No of shares No of shares
No of

Debenture
No of

Debenture

Dr. S. Kelegama - -
- -

Mr. Russell De Mel 20,000 -
Mr. G.J Walker - -
Mr. J. Hyun - -

- -
- -

31,003 31,003 10,000 -
Mr. J. Mendis 59,000 59,000 15,000 15,000
Mr. S. Ramanathan - -

15,000 15,000 10,000 -
- -

43,555 43,555
8,000 8,000

The names of Directors of the Company as at 31st March 2017 and 

Employment
The number of persons employed by the Company as at 31st March 

Details of human resource initiatives are detailed in the employees’ 
section of the sustainability report.

Independence of Directors

Direction No. 3 of 2008, Finance Companies (Corporate Governance 

Practice on Corporate Governance and Rule 7.10.2(b) of the Colombo 

of the Company, have submitted a signed and dated declaration 

requirement of CSE.

in the Finance Companies (Corporate Governance) Direction No. 3 
of 2008 section 4 (4) , Finance Companies (Corporate Governance 

Practice on Corporate Governance and Item (g) of Rule 7.10.4 of the 

that Dr. Saman Kelegama is nevertheless independent on the 

(a)  His high standing in society and business sector

(Dr. Saman Kelegama did not participate in these deliberations and 

of interest)

(Corporate Governance) Direction No. 3 of 2008 by virtue of the ability 
to make such appointment vested by section 7 (2) of the Finance 
Companies (Corporate Governance) Direction No. 3 of 2008
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. S. Kelegama

Corporate Governance
Director’s Declaration

The directors declare that having considered all information and 

in conducting its business

(b) The Directors have declared all material Interest in contracts 
involving the Company and refrained from voting on matters in 

(c) The Company has made all endeavour to ensure the equitable 
treatment of shareholders

operational and compliance controls and risk management and 

The Corporate Governance report is given under the governance 

Donations
During the year, the Company has made Rs. 107,000 as donations. 

Auditors

re-appointment for the ensuing year. The Directors propose the re-

the Company for the year 2017/18.

relationship or interest in the Company. 

Report.

Notice of Meeting

27th June 2017 at 10.00 a.m. 

given on pages No. 182.

J.A. Setukavalar
Senior Independent Director

R.S.Wijeweera
Director/CEO

Ms. Pramila Liyanage, ACA,CGMA(UK)
Company Secretary

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC
Colombo

02nd June 2017
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibility

The Directors are also required to ensure that the Financial 

reasonable measures to safeguard the assets of the Company, 

and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors endeavour to ensure that the Company maintains 

foreseeable future, and therefore, have continued to adopt the going 
concern basis in preparing the accounts.

Compliance Report

payable on behalf of and in respect of the employees of the Company, 

Ms. Pramila Liyanage, ACA
Company Secretary

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC
Colombo 

02nd June 2017



Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC | Annual Report 2016/2017 127

Independent Auditors’ Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SINGER FINANCE 
(LANKA) PLC
Report on the Financial Statements

or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in 

Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 

are free from material misstatement.

procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 

assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

a) The basis of opinion, scope and limitations of the audit are as 
stated above

b) In our opinion:

the Company,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Colombo
02nd June 2017
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 Other Comprehensive Income
2017 2016

Note  Rs.  Rs. 

Gross Income                                                             4  2,610,297,455  2,113,395,716 

Interest Income 5  2,418,122,004  1,982,888,590 

Less: 6  978,996,146  688,134,510 

Net Interest Income   1,439,125,858  1,294,754,080 

Fee and Commission Income 7  113,109,837  94,376,104 

Trading Income 8  558,091  741,268 

Other Operating Income 9  78,507,523  35,389,754 

Total Operating Income  1,631,301,309  1,425,261,206 

Less: Impairment charges for Loans and Other Losses                                                       10.1  70,540,741  29,143,097 

Net Operating Income  1,560,760,568  1,396,118,109 

Less: Expenses

Personnel Cost 10.2  353,893,133  281,589,606 

470,407,310 368,445,623

58,929,809 29,470,447

  

10  677,530,316  716,612,433 

Less:  109,316,438  69,799,573 

 568,213,878  646,812,860 

Less: 11  198,384,575  205,958,126 

 369,829,303  440,854,734 

Other Comprehensive Income         

Add: 27.1  1,609,346  (1,000,104) 

Add: 26.1  (450,617)  280,029 

Total Other Comprehensive (Income) / Expenses for the Year  1,158,729  (720,075) 

 370,988,032  440,134,659 

Earnings per Share 12  2.24  2.67 

Dividend per Share 13  1.06    1.50 

The Notes on pages 132 through 173 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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2017 2016

Note  Rs.  Rs. 

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents                                                                             14.1  166,811,200  43,737,433 

 81,128,395  85,671,491 
Hire Purchase Receivables 15.1  320,895,390  908,307,507 
Lease Rental Receivables 15.2  9,305,471,330  7,661,731,504 

15.3  1,926,093,526  1,466,256,195 
Inventories  21,960,000 

16  41,300  41,300 
Financial Instruments - Held-to-Maturity                                                          17  549,255,803  536,916,508 
Other Debtors and Prepayments 18  192,113,184  163,912,175 

19  32,010,696  36,041,481 
Property, Plant and Equipment 20  124,657,736  111,233,376 
Total Assets 12,698,478,560 11,035,808,970 

Liabilities & Equity
Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities Due to Customers                                                   21  3,210,547,585  3,173,767,463 

22  5,015,163,634  3,625,508,918 
Trade and Other Payables 23  539,819,082  667,907,345 
Due to Related Companies                                                                              24  569,369,484  421,199,128 

14.2  478,180,936  353,420,475 
25  87,997,648  111,517,483 
26  39,941,693  54,344,543 
27  36,842,050  30,515,198 

Total Liabilities  9,977,862,112  8,438,180,553 

Equity
Stated Capital 28  1,445,333,342  1,445,333,342 
Statutory Reserves 29  113,852,174  95,360,709 
Retained Earnings  1,161,430,932  1,056,934,366 
Total Equity  2,720,616,448  2,597,628,417 
Total Liabilities & Equity 12,698,478,560 11,035,808,970 

Contingencies 33.2 1,050,000 750,000

The Notes on pages 132 through 173 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.    

T. A. Amarasuriya    

    

Singed for on behalf of the board,    

J.A. Setukavalar R. S. Wijeweera
Senior Independent Director

Colombo.    
02nd June 2017    

Statement of Financial Position
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Stated Reserve Retained Total
Capital Fund Earnings

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 1st April 2015  1,445,333,342  73,317,972  845,509,112  2,364,160,426 

Total Comprehensive Income For The Year

 -    -    440,854,734  440,854,734 

Other Comprehensive Income
 -    -    (1,000,104)  (1,000,104)

 
 -    -    280,029  280,029 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  -    -    440,134,659  440,134,659 

Transactions with Owners of the Company,  
Recognized Directly in Equity 
Distribution to Owners of the Company
Transferred to/(from) during the year  -    22,042,737  (22,042,737)  -   
Final Dividends - 2014/15  -    -    (206,666,668)  (206,666,668)
Total Transactions with Equity Owners  -     22,042,737     (228,709,405)  (206,666,668)
Balance as at 31st March 2016  1,445,333,342  95,360,709  1,056,934,366  2,597,628,417 
Balance as at 1st April 2016  1,445,333,342  95,360,709  1,056,934,366  2,597,628,417 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

 369,829,303  369,829,303 

Other Comprehensive Income
 1,609,346  1,609,346 

 
 (450,617)  (450,617)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  370,988,032  370,988,032 

Transactions with Owners of the Company,  
Recognized Directly in Equity 
Distribution to Owners of the Company
Transferred to/(from) during the year  18,491,465  (18,491,465)
Final Dividends - 2015/16  (248,000,001)  (248,000,001)
Total Transactions with Equity Owners   18,491,465     (266,491,466)  (248,000,001)
Balance as at 31st March 2017  1,445,333,342  113,852,174  1,161,430,932  2,720,616,448 

The Notes on pages 132 through 173 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Figures in the brackets indicate deductions.

Statement of Changes in Equity
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Cash Flow Statement
2017 2016

Note  Rs.  Rs. 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
 568,213,878  646,812,860 

 (55,017,243)  (45,573,057)
 (8,566,703)  (6,163,420)

Finance Cost  908,112,061  641,760,441 
 28,620,043  24,356,841 
 30,309,767  5,113,606 

27  8,457,338  7,235,033 
15.4.1  70,540,741  29,143,097 

Debenture Issue Cost  10,029,901  8,167,940 
 1,560,699,783  1,310,853,341 

Changes in;
Increase in Lease Rentals Receivables  (1,677,667,249)  (3,067,562,741)
Decrease in Hire Purchase Receivables  593,025,598  1,147,867,336 

 (502,064,130)  (304,202,887)
Increase in Other Debtors & Prepayments  (4,124,055)  (27,927,852)
(Increase)/Decrease In Inventory  21,960,000  (21,960,000)
Decrease in Public Deposits  (6,890,753)  (902,559,949)

 148,170,356  (130,125,830)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables  (129,352,952)  123,835,747 
Cash Flows From/ (Used In) Operations  3,756,598  (1,871,782,835)
Finance Cost Paid  (802,774,498)  (679,230,619)
Retiring Gratuity Paid  (521,140)  (88,629)
ESC Paid  (29,000,834)  -   

25  (231,833,998)  (157,722,412)
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities  (1,060,373,872)  (2,708,824,495)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities

 (38,951,210)  (64,110,457)
 (29,372,174)  (15,178,807)

Net Change in Investment Securities  (5,000,009)  78,999,993 
 5,000,000  5,000,000 

Interest Income Received  55,787,756  53,483,464 
Net Cash Flows From/ (Used In) Investing Activities  (12,535,637)  58,194,193 
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Issue of Debenture  991,482,053  1,483,794,857 
Issue of Commercial Papers 22.3  534,362,906  -   

22.2  2,200,000,000  2,010,000,000 
24.2.1  500,000,000  500,000,000 

Repayment of  Loans  Other Than Related Party  (1,560,000,000)  (1,472,700,000)
24.2.1  (500,000,000)  -   

Repayment of Commercial Papers 22.3  (431,220,832)  -   
Repayment of Debenture  (416,666,000)  -   
Dividend Paid  (246,735,312)  (205,846,101)
Net Cash Flows From Financing Activities  1,071,222,815  2,315,248,756 
Net decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents  (1,686,694)  (335,381,545)
Cash And Cash Equivalents At The Beginning Of The Year  (309,683,042)  25,698,503 
Cash And Cash Equivalents At The End Of The Year 14  (311,369,736)  (309,683,042)

The Notes on pages 132 through 173 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1. Corporate Information
1.1. Reporting Entity
1.1.1. General 

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC (“Company”), regulated under 

domiciled in Sri Lanka under the provisions of the 

business is situated at the same place.

317 (298 as at 31st March 2016).

1.1.2. Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

durables under loan scheme and granting loans, factoring, 
credit card, authorised foreign currency dealer and mobilising 

principal business activities of the Company during the 

1.1.3. Parent Enterprise and Ultimate Parent Enterprise
The Company’s parent undertaking is Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC. 
The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking and controlling 

1.2. Basis of Preparation
1.2.1. Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the Company have been 

2011 and amendments thereto, and provide appropriate 
disclosures as required by the Listing Rules of the Colombo 

accrual basis of accounting.

1.2.2. Responsibility for Financial Statements

preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements 

on the Statement of Financial Position.

components:

Company.

users, on the ability of the Company to generate cash and 

1.2.3. Approval of Financial Statement
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017 

1.2.4. Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual 

fair value.

1.2.5. Functional and Presentation Currency
Items included in the Financial Statements of the Company 
are measured using the currency of the primary economic 

Currency).

These Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan 
Rupees, the Company’s Functional and Presentation 
Currency.

1.2.6. Presentation of Financial Statements
The assets and liabilities of the Company presented in the 
Statements of Financial Position are grouped by nature 

maturity pattern.
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1.2.7. Materiality and Aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately 
in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or 
function are presented separately unless they are immaterial 

01 on “Presentation of Financial Statements”.

1.2.8. Going Concern Basis for Accounting
The Management has made an assessment of its ability to 

resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, 
the Financial Statements of the Company continue to be 
prepared on a going concern basis.

net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position, 

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on 
a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

1.2.10. Rounding
The amounts in the Financial Statements have been rounded 

01 on “presentation of Financial Statements”.

1.2.11. Comparative Information
Comparative information is disclosed in respect of the 
previous period in the Financial Statements in order to 
enhance the understanding of the current period’s Financial 
Statements and to enhance the inter period comparability. 

those of the current year.

issue.

In this regard, all material and important events that 

and appropriate disclosures are made in the Financial 

1.2.13. Use of Judgments and Estimates
In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company in 

basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively.

consistently to all periods presented in the Financial 

and Subsequent Measurement
2.1.1.  Date of Recognition

The Company initially recognises Lease and Hire Purchase 
receivables, loans and advances, deposits and debt securities 

the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

2.1.2. Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments

recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and 
the management’s intention in acquiring them. 

value plus transaction costs, that are directly attributable to 

Instruments : Recognition and Measurement” recorded at fair 

through the Income Statement. 

other observable current market transactions in the same 

variables include only data from observable markets, the 

‘Day 1 loss’ arising in the case of loans granted to employees 
at concessionary rates under uniformly applicable schemes 
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over the remaining service period of the employees or tenure 

Assets

categories:

2.1.3.1 Loans and Receivables

quoted in an active market, other than:

in the near term and those that the Company, upon initial 

loss

designates as available for sale

substantially all of its initial investment, other than because 
of credit deterioration

‘Loans and receivables’ include Lease Rental Receivables, 

debtors of the Company.

Rentals Receivable”. Leasing balances are stated in the 

rentals received, unearned lease income and the provision 
for impairment.

Purchase Receivable’. Such assets are accounted for in a 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR, 

any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and 
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortisation 
is included in ‘Interest Income’. The losses arising from 
impairment are recognised in the Income Statement in 

‘Impairment charges for loans and other losses’ in the 
Income Statement.

2.1.3.2 Held to Maturity Financial Investments

cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of 
the EIR. The amortisation is included in ‘Interest Income’ in 
the Income Statement. The losses arising from impairment 
of such investments are recognised in the Income Statement 
in ‘Impairment charges for loans and other losses’.

Held to Maturity Investments include Investments in Treasury 

2.1.3.3 Available for Sale Financial Investments

as held for trading nor designated at fair value through 

response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in 
the market conditions.

investments are subsequently measured at fair value. 

Unrealised gains and losses are recognised directly in Equity 

For-Sale Reserve’. When the investment is disposed of, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Equity is 
recycled to Income Statement in ‘Other operating income’. 

investments is reported as ‘Interest Income’ using the EIR.

investments are recognised in the Income Statement as 

payment has been established. The losses arising from 
impairment of such investments too are recognised in 

reserve’.

Shares.

2.1.3.4 Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and 

are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash 

in their fair value.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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an integral part of the Company’s cash management are 
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for 

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in 
the Statement of Financial Position.

Liabilities

2.1.4.1 Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
Financial instruments issued by the Company that are not 

as liabilities under ‘Other Financial Liabilities Due to 

arrangement results in the Company having an obligation 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR 

any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. 

the Income Statement. Gains and losses are recognised in 

of the ‘held for trading’ category and into the ‘available-for-
sale’, ‘loans and receivables’, or ‘held to maturity’ categories 

39 on ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. 
Further, in certain circumstances, the Company is permitted 

sale’ category and into the ‘loans and receivables’ category. 

the ‘available-for-sale’ category, any previous gain or loss 
on that asset that has been recognised in Equity is amortised 

to be impaired, then the amount recorded in Equity is 

The Company may reclassify a non-derivative trading asset 
out of the ‘held for trading’ category and into the ‘loans and 

receivables and the Company has the intention and ability 

Company subsequently increases its estimates of future 
cash receipts as a result of increased recoverability of those 

an adjustment to the EIR from the date of the change in 
estimate.

determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

recognition. Further, the Company does not reclassify any 

2.1.6. De Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities

2.1.6.1 Financial Assets

the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received 

under a ‘pass- through’ arrangement; and either:

transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive 

arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained 

of the Company’s continuing involvement in it. In that case, 
the Company also recognises an associated liability. The 
transferred assets and the associated liabilities are measured 

Company has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee 

amount of consideration that the Company could be required 
to repay.
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2.1.6.2 Financial Liabilities

net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position 
if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to 

settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously.

arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the 
Company’s trading activity.

2.1.8. Amortised Cost Measurement 

measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, 
plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the 

recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction 
for impairment.

2.1.9. Determination of Fair Value

market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 
takes place either:

advantageous market for the asset or liability.

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2

directly or indirectly observable

Level 3

unobservable

 Level 1
When available, the Company measures the fair value of 
an instrument using active quoted prices or dealer price 

quotations (assets and long positions are measured at a bid 
price; liabilities and short positions are measured at an ask 

is regarded as active if transactions for asset or liability take 

information on an ongoing basis.

 Level 2

the Company establishes fair value using a valuation 
technique. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s 

(if available), reference to the current fair value of other 
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted 

and other relevant valuation models. The chosen valuation 

Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably represent market 

valuation techniques and tests them for validity using prices 
from observable current market transactions in the same 
instrument or based on other available observable market 
data.

at initial recognition is the transaction price, i.e. the fair 
value of the consideration given or received, unless the fair 

other observable current market transactions in the same 

only data from observable markets. When transaction 
price provides the best evidence of fair value at initial 

and the value initially obtained from a valuation model is 

or the transaction is closed out.

 Level 3

observable market data are not available. Their fair value is 
determined by using valuation models that have been tested 
against prices or inputs to actual market transactions and 
also using the best estimate of the most appropriate model 

credit and debit valuation adjustments, liquidity spread and 

become observable or on de-recognition of the instrument.
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Financial Assets

objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has 

asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

securities) are impaired can include:

issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate 

In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a 

is considered as an objective evidence of impairment.

2.1.10.1 Impairment of Financial Assets Carried at Amortised 
Cost

lease rental and hire purchase receivables, loans and 

the Company determines that no objective evidence of 

similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses 

continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective 
assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has 
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use 

is recognised in the Income Statement. 

For the purpose of collective evaluation of impairment, 

consideration credit risk characteristics.

collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the 

characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss 

currently.

2.1.10.2 Impairment of Financial Investments - Available for Sale

evidence that an investment is impaired.

objective evidence of impairment based on the same criteria 

amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss 

and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that 

interest income is based on the reduced carrying amount/
impaired balance and is accrued using the rate of interest 

measuring the impairment loss. The interest income on such 

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument 
increases and the increase can be objectively related to 

recognised in the Income Statement, the impairment loss is 
reversed through the Income Statement.

or ‘prolonged’ decline in the fair value of the investment 

the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any 
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised 
in the Income Statement is removed from equity and 

subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired 
available-for-sale equity security is recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income.

2.1.10.3 Collateral Repossessed 
The Company’s policy is to sell the repossessed assets at the 
earliest possible opportunity. Such collateral repossessed 

underlying receivable.
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2.2 Property, Plant and Equipment
The Company applies the requirements of the Sri Lanka 

and use in the provision of services, for rental to others or 

more than one year.

2.2.1 Basis of recognition and measurement
Property, Plant & Equipment are recognised if it is probable 

measured.

The Company applies the Cost Model to all Property, Plant & 

and any accumulated impairment losses.

recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost. 

costs of day-to-day servicing).The cost of self-constructed 
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any 
other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to 

dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site 

the related equipment is capitalised as part of Computer 
Equipment.

When parts of an item of property or equipment have 

items (major components) of property and equipment.

2.2.2 Subsequent cost

2.2.3 Depreciation

Property, Plant & Equipment less their estimated residual 
values using the straight-line method over their estimated 

the lease term and their useful lives. Freehold land is not 
depreciated.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative 

Motor Vehicle 7 years

Furniture & Fittings 10 years

Equipment  10 years

EDP Equipment 5 years

EDP Server 7 years

Improvements on Leasehold Premises

The depreciation rates are determined separately for each 

to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier 

date that the asset is de-recognised.

2.2.4 Change in Depreciation Rate
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reassessed at each Reporting date and adjusted, if required.

2.2.5 De-recognition

of the asset), is recognised in ‘Other Operating Income’ in 

replacement costs are recognised in the carrying amount 
of an item of Property, Plant & Equipment, the remaining 
carrying amount of the replaced part is de-recognised as 

‘Property, Plant & Equipment’.

2.2.6 Capital Work-in-Progress

the construction of buildings, major plant and machinery 

stated in the Statement of Financial Position at cost. 

2.3 Intangible Assets
The Company’s intangible assets include the value of 

2.3.1 Basis of recognition and measurement

entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably in 
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Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 

are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at cost, less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any.

2.3.2 Subsequent Expenditure

2.3.3 Amortisation of intangible assets
Intangible assets are amortised using the straight line 

2.3.4 De-recognition of Intangible Assets

or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset 

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 

2.4 Leases

or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the 

to use the asset.

2.4.1 Operating Leases
2.4.1.1 Operating Leases – Company as a Lessee

Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially 

assets are operating leases. Operating lease payments are 

straight line basis over the lease term. Contingent rental 

they are incurred.

2.4.1.2 Operating Leases – Company as a Lessor

as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating 
operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the 
same basis as rental income.

Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in 

2.4.2 Finance Leases
2.4.2.1 Finance Leases – Company as a Lessee

Finance leases that transfer substantially all risks and 

Company, are capitalised at the commencement of the 

the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease 

reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate 
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of 
the asset and the lease term.

2.4.2.2 Finance Leases – Company as a Lessor

charges, are included in ‘ Lease rentals receivables , as 

‘interest income’ over the periods of the leases so as to give 
a constant rate of return on the net investment in the leases.

2.5 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the 

of other assets or CGUs. 

The ‘recoverable amount’ of an asset or CGU is the greater of 
its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. ‘Value in 

its estimated recoverable amount.

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate 

Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and 
consistent basis and tested for impairment as part of the 

allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying 
amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro-rata basis.

For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the 

depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 
recognised.
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2.6 Inventory

The cost of an inventory is the purchase price. Net realisable 
value is the estimated realisable value less estimated cost 
necessary to make the sale.

2.7 Dividend Payables
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability 

2.8 Deposits due to Customers 

Subsequent to initial recognition, deposits are measured 

2.8.1 Deposit Insurance Scheme
In terms of the Finance Companies Direction No 2 of 2010 
“Insurance of Deposit Liabilities” issued on 27th September 
2010 all Registered Finance Companies are required to 
insure their deposit liabilities in the Deposit Insurance 

Lanka Deposit Insurance Scheme Regulations No 1 of 2010 

Deposits to be insured include demand, time and savings 

management personnel and other related parties as 

2008 on Corporate Governance of Registered Finance 
Companies

accommodation granted

Registered Finance Companies are required to pay a 
premium of 0.15% on eligible deposit liabilities as at end of 

end of the respective month.

2.9 Debt Securities Issued and Subordinated Term Debts

long-term funding requirements. Subsequent to initial 
recognition debt securities issued are measured at their 

2.10 Other Liabilities

payable at the Reporting date.

2.11 Provisions

Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that 

market assessments of the time value of money and the 

The liability recognised in the Statement of Financial Position 

discounted to present value.

independent actuaries using Projected Unit Credit Method 

have been recognise in the other Comprehensive income 
(OCI).

years of continual service.

The Company is liable to pay gratuity in terms of the relevant 
statute.

Provident Fund/ Mercantile Services Provident Society 
and Employees’ Trust Fund

are rendered by employees.
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2.12.2.1 Mercantile Services Provident Society (MSPS)
The Company and employees contribute 12% respectively 
on the salary of each employee to the Fund Managed by 
Mercantile Services Provident Society.

2.12.2.2 Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF) 
The Company contributes 3% of the salary of each employee 

of Sri Lanka.

2.13 Recognition of Income and Expenses

revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can 

for the purpose of recognition of revenue.

2.13.1 Interest Income and Expense

liability. When calculating the EIR, the Company estimates 

The calculation of the EIR includes transaction costs and 
fees and points paid or received that are an integral part of 
the EIR. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are 

Statement include:

measured at amortised cost calculated using EIR method;

2.13.2 Over Due Interest
Over Due Interest have been accounted for on a cash 
received basis.

2.13.3  Fees and Commission Income and Expense

measurement of the EIR. Other fees and commission income 
are recognised as the related services are performed. 

2.13.4 Net Gain / (Loss) from Trading
‘Net gain / (loss) from trading’ comprise gains less losses 
related to trading assets and liabilities, and include all 
realised and unrealised fair value changes and dividends.

2.14 Tax Expense 

Equity or in OCI.

2.14.1 Current Taxation

substantively enacted, at the Reporting date.

Notes to Financial Statements include the major 

2.14.2 Deferred Taxation

date.

the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

2.15 Value Added Tax on Financial Services

computed on rates prescribed by the Department of Inland 

in money and not in money including contribution or 

2.16 Nation Building Tax on Financial Services (NBT)

in notes to the Financial Statements.

2.17 Crop Insurance Levy (CIL)

2013 and is payable to the National Insurance Trust Fund. 
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2.18 Withholding Tax on Dividends Distributed by the 
Company 

by the Company is recognised at the time the liability to pay 
the related dividend is recognised. 

2.19 Earnings per Share (EPS)

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the 

during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the 

2.20 Segment Reporting

decisions about resources allocated to each segment and 

information is available.

For each of the strategic divisions, the Company’s 
management monitors the operating results separately for 
the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation 
and performance assessment.

Segment performance is evaluated based on operating 

basis and are not allocated to operating segments. Detailed 
information on the results of each reportable segment as 

“Operating Segments” is provided in Notes to the Financial 
Statements.

2.21 Commitments and Contingencies

reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in 
the Statement of Financial Position but are disclosed unless 
they are remote.

2.22 Statement of Cash Flows

Statements”. Cash and cash equivalents comprise short 
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 

risk of changes in value. The cash and cash equivalent 
include cash in hand and favourable and/ or unfavourable 

Date

date, have not been applied in preparing these Financial 

Standards have not been applied in preparing these Financial 
Statements and the Company plans to apply these standards 

Measurement”

Measurement. SLFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the 

The Company’s is assessing the potential impact on its 
Financial Statements resulting from the application of  
SLFRS 9.

Given the nature of the Company’s operations, this standard 

Financial Statements. In particular, calculation of impairment 

 SLFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers

“Construction Contracts”.

The Company’s is assessing the potential impact on its 
Financial Statements resulting from the application of  
SLFRS 15.

 IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 introduces a single, on balance sheet lease 

right-of-use (ROU) assets representing its right to use 
the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its 
obligation to make lease payments. There are optional 

items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current 
standard. 

The Company’s is assessing the potential impact on its 
Financial Statements resulting from the application of  
IFRS 06. 
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2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

4 Gross Income                                                             

4.1 Summary

Gross Income  2,610,297,455  2,113,395,716 

4.2 Analysis of Gross Income

Interest Income (Note 5)  2,418,122,004  1,982,888,590 

Fee and Commission Income (Note 7)  113,109,837  94,376,104 

Trading Income (Note 8)  558,091  741,268 

Other Operating Income (Note 9)  78,507,523  35,389,754 

 2,610,297,455  2,113,395,716 

5 Interest Income

Interest Income on Hire Purchase  125,764,109  305,646,626 

Interest Income on Lease  1,609,610,789  1,162,082,130 

Interest Income on  Loans  458,454,004  338,679,768 

Income on Financial Instruments - Held-to-Maturity  55,017,243  45,573,057 

 8,566,703  6,163,420 

Interest on Inter Company Receivable  39,424,117  20,618,039 

Over Due Interest  121,285,039  104,125,550 

 2,418,122,004  1,982,888,590 

6 Interest Expense

Interest on Other Financial Liabilities Due to Customers  320,709,995  313,522,110 

 152,766,468  34,150,852 

Interest on Commercial Papers  22,541,139  -   

Interest on Inter Company Payable  38,983,019  28,942,973 

Interest on Debenture  412,094,458  294,087,478 

Debenture Issue Cost  10,002,961  8,968,366 

 21,898,106  8,462,731 

 978,996,146  688,134,510 

7 Fee and Commission Income

Service Charge  75,687,557  66,354,834 

Commission Income  3,787,364  3,580,324 

Reimbursement Fee Credit Card  5,203,669  438,496 

Insurance Commission  28,431,247  24,002,450 

 113,109,837  94,376,104 

8 Trading Income

 558,091  741,268 

 558,091  741,268 
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2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

9 Other Operating Income

Gain on Translation of Foreign Currency  185,813  434,494 

 5,452,349  648,500 

Loan Loss Recoveries  11,580,359  13,576,510 

Other Operating Income on Credit Card  6,822,535  117,557 

Other Income  54,466,467  20,612,693 

 78,507,523  35,389,754 

2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

10
all expenses including the following:

 18,794,830  18,776,928 

450,000  400,000 

1,380,000  1,290,000 

275,000  955,000 

 3,093,192  4,751,541 

30,309,767 5,113,606

Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment  25,526,850  19,605,300 

 7,213,316  6,440,642 

Personnel Cost (Note 10.2)  353,893,133  281,589,606 

Operating Lease Rentals  47,218,157  38,677,597 

 10.1 Impairment Charge for Loans and Other Losses

Impairment Reversal on Hire Purchase Receivables  (Note 15.1.3)  (5,613,481)  (1,852,205)

Impairment Charge on Lease Receivables (Note 15.2.4)  33,927,423  7,801,676 

 42,226,799  23,193,626 

 70,540,741  29,143,097 

 10.2 Personnel Cost

 321,808,358  253,337,468 

 8,457,338  7,235,033 

 23,627,437  21,017,105 

 353,893,133  281,589,606 

11 Income Tax Expense

 212,705,425  212,144,009 

532,617  (28,838,179)

 213,238,042  183,305,830 

 (14,853,467)  22,652,296 

 198,384,575  205,958,126 
  

Notes to the Financial Statements



Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC | Annual Report 2016/2017 145

2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

11.1

 568,213,878  646,812,860 

 159,099,886  181,107,601 

 30,038,584  28,796,373 

 57,868,270  35,786,217 

 (34,301,315)  (33,532,182)

 (14,000)

 (14,853,467)  22,652,296 

Prior period under/(over) provision (Note 11 )  532,617  (28,838,179)

 198,384,575  205,958,126 

2016/2017
 Leasing 

Total
 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.

11.2
the Statutory Tax Rate

 479,089,730  89,124,148  568,213,878 
Adjustments
Capital portion of leasing rental due  3,048,031,029  3,048,031,029 

 139,824,297  66,848,100  206,672,397 
 (3,023,630,979)  (39,624,093)  (3,063,255,072)

Total statutory income  643,314,077  116,348,155  759,662,232 
 643,314,077  116,348,155  759,662,232 

 28  28  28 
 180,127,942  32,577,483  212,705,425 

 37.60  36.55  37.43 

2015/2016
 Leasing 

Total

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.

the Statutory Tax Rate
453,874,389  192,938,471 646,812,860

Adjustments
Capital portion of leasing rental due  2,415,064,394  -    2,415,064,394 

 78,198,336  49,609,580  127,807,917 
 (2,385,493,132)  (46,484,865)  (2,431,977,997)

Total statutory income  561,643,987  196,063,186  757,707,173 
Qualifying payments  (30,592)  (19,408)  (50,000)

 561,613,395  196,043,778  757,657,173 
 28  28  28 

 157,251,751  54,892,258  212,144,009 
 34.65  28.45  32.80 
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12  Earnings per Share

2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

Amount Used as the Numerator

 369,829,303  440,854,734 

Amount Used as the Denominator

 165,333,334  165,333,334 

 2.24  2.67 

13 Dividend per Share

Ordinary Shares

Proposed First & Final Dividend 2016/17 - Rs. 1.06/- (2015/16 - Rs. 1.50/-) 175,253,334  248,000,001 

2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

14 Cash and Cash Equivalents

14.1 Favourable Cash and Cash Equivalent Balances

Cash in hand  26,924,372  6,078,355 

 120,893,864  32,330,664 

 18,992,964  5,328,414 

 166,811,200  43,737,433 

14.2 Unfavourable Cash and Cash Equivalent Balances

 (478,180,936)  (353,420,475)

 (311,369,736)  (309,683,042)



Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC | Annual Report 2016/2017 147

2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

15 Loans and Receivables from Customers

15.1  Hire Purchase Receivables

Rental Receivable  394,896,938  1,144,945,480 

Unearned Interest Income  (50,533,673)  (204,846,995)

Gross Receivable  344,363,265  940,098,485 

 (23,467,875)  (31,790,978)

Net Receivables  320,895,390  908,307,507 

15.1.1 Hire Purchase Rentals Receivable within One Year from Reporting Date 

259,287,079  570,283,876 

Unearned Interest Income  (37,979,040)  (127,074,682)

 221,308,039  443,209,194 

15.1.2

135,609,859  574,661,604 

Unearned Interest Income  (12,554,633)  (77,772,313)

 123,055,226  496,889,291 

Gross Receivables  344,363,265  940,098,485 

15.1.3 Movement in Collective Impairment Allowance for Hire Purchase Receivables

 31,790,978  39,606,373 

Reversal for the year  (5,613,481)  (1,852,205)

 (2,709,622)  (5,963,190)

 23,467,875  31,790,978 

15.2 Lease Rental Receivables

Rental Receivable  12,314,455,306  10,038,601,270 

Unearned Interest Income  (2,897,566,624)  (2,274,981,343)

Gross Receivable  9,416,888,682  7,763,619,927 

 (111,417,352)  (101,888,423)

Net Receivables  9,305,471,330  7,661,731,504 

15.2.1 Lease Rentals Receivable within One Year from Reporting Date 

 4,807,387,334  3,763,982,964 

Unearned Interest Income  (1,399,084,259)  (1,118,534,152)

 3,408,303,075  2,645,448,812 

15.2.2

7,505,262,447  6,267,707,360 

Unearned Interest Income  (1,498,450,241)  (1,156,366,025)

 6,006,812,206  5,111,341,335 
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2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

15.2.3

1,805,525  6,910,946 

Unearned Interest Income  (32,124)  (81,166)

 1,773,401  6,829,780 

Gross Receivables  9,416,888,682  7,763,619,927 

15.2.4 Movement in Collective Impairment Allowance for Lease Rentals Receivables

 101,888,423  133,571,011 

Charge for the year  33,927,423  7,801,676 

 (24,398,494)  (39,484,264)

 111,417,352  101,888,423 

15.3 Loans and Advances

 2,204,908,473  1,680,059,151 

Unearned Interest Income  (249,091,212)  (209,247,990)

 29,734,568  37,770,364 

 1,985,551,829  1,508,581,525 

 (59,458,303)  (42,325,330)

Net Receivables  1,926,093,526  1,466,256,195 

15.3.1 Loans and Advances Receivable within One Year from Reporting Date

1,897,247,180  1,379,767,874 

 29,734,568  37,770,364 

Unearned Interest Income  (215,493,540)  (176,558,321)

Net Receivables  1,711,488,208  1,240,979,917 

15.3.2

307,286,059  299,999,518 

Unearned Interest Income  (33,597,632)  (32,689,360)

 273,688,427  267,310,158 

15.3.3

 375,234  291,759 

Unearned Interest Income  (40)  (309)

 375,194  291,450 

Gross Receivables  1,985,551,829  1,508,581,525 



Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC | Annual Report 2016/2017 149

2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

15.3.4 Movement in Collective Impairment for Loans & Advances

 42,325,330  39,044,780 

Charge for the year  42,226,799  23,193,626 

 (25,093,826)  (19,913,076)

 59,458,303  42,325,330 

15.4 Allowance for Impairment

15.4.1 Movement in Collective Allowance for Impairment

 176,004,731  212,222,164 

Charge for the year  70,540,741  29,143,097 

 (52,201,942)  (65,360,530)

 194,343,530  176,004,731 

15.4.2 Allowance for Impairment consist of Provisioning Against

Hire Purchase Receivables (Note 15.1.3)  23,467,875  31,790,978 

Lease Receivable (Note 15.2.4)  111,417,352  101,888,423 

 59,458,303  42,325,330 

 194,343,530  176,004,731 

15.5 Analysis by Sector     

2017 2016

Rs. % Rs. %

 1,823,024,455  15.8  1,856,823,716  18.5 

Tourism  94,834,963  0.8  13,439,067  0.1 

Transport  3,308,123,073  28.6  2,172,114,751  21.6 

Construction  89,219,836  0.8  21,794,699  0.2 

Services  2,589,791,879  22.4  2,500,191,790  24.9 

Individual  3,647,466,040  31.6  3,471,931,183  34.7 

 11,552,460,246  100.0  10,036,295,206  100.0 
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2017 2016

 No. of   Cost of  Cost of 

 Ordinary  Investment  Investment 

 Shares  Rs.  Rs. 

16 Financial Instruments - Available-For-Sale

 100  41,300  41,300 

2017 2016

Rs. Rs.

17 Financial Instruments - Held-to-Maturity

 460,383,227  449,968,870 

 88,872,576  86,947,638 

 549,255,803  536,916,508 

18 Other Debtors and Prepayments

Loans to Employees  (Note 18.1)  44,596,899  47,014,217 

 5,309,230  4,309,990 

Economic Service Charge Receivables 29,000,834 -

Prepayments  82,472,514  67,080,544 

 30,733,707  45,507,424 

 192,113,184  163,912,175 

18.1 Loans to Employees

 47,014,217  44,548,463 

Loans granted during the year  11,410,000  32,856,095 

 (13,827,318)  (30,390,341)

 44,596,899  47,014,217 

 17,082,584  15,819,017 

 27,514,315  31,195,200 

 44,596,899  47,014,217 
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2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

19 Intangible Assets

19.1 Cost

 71,252,777  56,073,970 

 29,372,174  15,178,807 

 100,624,951  71,252,777 

19.2 Accumulated Amortization and Impairment

 (35,211,296)  (25,346,149)

 (3,093,192)  (4,751,541)

 (30,309,767)  (5,113,606)

 (68,614,255)  (35,211,296)

19.3 Carrying Amount

 32,010,696  36,041,481 

 32,010,696  36,041,481 

19.4 Rs. 29,372,174 (2015/16 - Rs. 15,178,807).

19.5 Rs. 64,695,264  (2015/16 - Rs. 5,553,844).

19.6 eFinancials
Inbank. 

Disposal 31st March 2017

20 Property, Plant and Equipment

20.1 Cost

Improvement on Leasehold Premises  101,874,470  10,042,741  -    111,917,211 

Equipments  27,301,432  4,499,601  -    31,801,033 

EDP Equipments  39,936,943  17,943,878  -    57,880,821 

Motor Vehicles  6,980,000  3,200,000  -    10,180,000 

Furniture and Fittings  22,297,079  3,015,107  -    25,312,186 

 198,389,924  38,701,327  -    237,091,251 

Capital Work in Progress - 249,883 - 249,883

 198,389,924 38,951,210 - 237,341,134
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Depreciation Disposal 31st March 2017

20.2 Accumulated Depreciation

Improvement on Leasehold Premises  (46,015,669)  (12,409,594)  -    (58,425,263)

Equipments  (8,278,282)  (2,760,682)  -    (11,038,964)

EDP Equipments  (21,416,212)  (7,120,436)  -    (28,536,648)

Motor Vehicles  (2,226,905)  (1,025,714)  -    (3,252,619)

Furniture and Fittings  (9,219,480)  (2,210,424)  -    (11,429,904)

 (87,156,548)  (25,526,850)  -    (112,683,398)

2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

20.3 Carrying Amount

Improvement on Leasehold Premises  53,491,948  55,858,801 

Equipments  20,762,069  19,023,150 

EDP Equipments  29,344,173  18,520,731 

Motor Vehicles  6,927,381  4,753,095 

Furniture and Fittings  13,882,282  13,077,599 

Capital Work In Progress  249,883  -   

 124,657,736  111,233,376 

20.4 Rs. 38,951,210  
(2015/16 - Rs. 64,110,457) on cash basis .

2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

20.5 Cost of Fully depreciated assets which are still in use as at reporting date is as follows:

Improvement on Leasehold Premises  19,612,510  17,095,263 

Equipments  1,959,660  1,480,660 

EDP Equipments  13,204,078  9,197,097 

Furniture and Fittings  1,557,519  1,387,621 

 36,333,767  29,160,641 

20.6
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2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

21 Other Financial Liabilities Due to Customers

 3,169,265,018  3,122,971,911 

Saving Deposits  41,282,567  50,795,552 

 3,210,547,585  3,173,767,463 

2017 2016

Repayable Repayable Repayable Repayable

Total Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

22 Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings

Debenture  (Note 22.1)  507,730,323  2,895,847,269  3,403,577,592  449,760,534  2,311,268,614  2,761,029,148 

 1,143,111,910  362,300,000  1,505,411,910  352,179,770  512,300,000  864,479,770 

Commercial Papers (Note 22.3)  106,174,132  106,174,132  -    -    -   

 1,757,016,365  3,258,147,269  5,015,163,634  801,940,304  2,823,568,614  3,625,508,918 

 No of  
 Debenture Face Value

 Interest  
 Rate 2017 2016

 Type Listed  Rs. % Issued Date Maturity Date Rs. Rs.

22.1 Debenture
36 Months Unsecured 
redeemable Debentures  4,166,660  416,666,667  14.00 10th Sep 2013 10th Sep 2016  415,325,887 
48 Months Unsecured 
redeemable Debentures  4,166,660  416,666,667  14.25 10th Sep 2013 10th Sep 2017  415,596,330  413,333,998 
60 Months Unsecured 
redeemable Debentures C  4,166,680  416,666,666  14.50 10th Sep 2013 10th Sep 2018  413,816,347  412,146,679 
60 Months Secured 
Debentures D  15,000,000 

 
1,500,000,000  9.95 17th June 2015 16th June 2020  1,523,509,174 

 
1,520,222,584 

36 Months Secured 
Debentures E  4,093,000  409,300,000  11.50  429,657,608  -   
48 Months Secured 
Debentures F  5,907,000  590,700,000  12.00  620,998,133  -   

 37,500,000 3,750,000,000 3,403,577,592 2,761,029,148 
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 Loans  

 Obtained Repayments 31st March 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs. Rs.  Rs. 

22.2 Bank Loans

 492,501,370  1,000,000,000  (600,401,370)  1,799,450  893,899,450 

 201,009,004  1,200,000,000  (911,009,004)  944,936  490,944,936 

 170,969,396  -    (50,769,396)  367,524  120,567,524 

 864,479,770  2,200,000,000  (1,562,179,770)  3,111,910  1,505,411,910 

22.2.1

2017 2016

Rate of Interest (p.a.) Repayment Terms Security Rs. Rs.

 Monthly Repayment  Lease Receivables  292,500,000  392,100,000 

 Monthly Repayment  Lease Receivables  69,800,000  120,200,000 

     362,300,000  512,300,000 

 Issues Repayments 31st March 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

22.3 Commercial Papers

Commercial Papers  -   534,362,906  (431,220,832)  3,032,058  106,174,132 

 -   534,362,906  (431,220,832)  3,032,058  106,174,132 

2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

23 Trade and Other Payables

Trade Payables  266,924,558  394,370,930 

 12,231,780  7,926,077 

 3,005,500  22,604,389 

 120,856,508  99,681,343 

Insurance Payable  43,611,923  47,058,911 

Dividend Payable  4,114,659  2,849,970 

Other Payables  89,074,154  93,415,725 

 539,819,082  667,907,345 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2017 2016

Relationship  Rs.  Rs. 

24 Amounts Due to Related Companies

24.1 Non-Trade

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC Parent Company  69,369,484  (78,800,872)

24.2 Loan from Related Party

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC Parent Company ( Note 24.2.1 )  500,000,000  500,000,000 

 569,369,484  421,199,128 

24.2.1 Movement of Loan from Related Party

 Loans  Repayments/

 Obtained Transfer 31st March 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC  500,000,000  500,000,000  (500,000,000)  500,000,000 

 500,000,000  500,000,000  (500,000,000)  500,000,000 

24.3 Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC     

month +0.50% 

2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

25 Current Tax Liabilities                                                                                                          

 111,517,483  91,362,143 

 213,238,042  183,305,830 

 (231,833,998)  (157,722,412)

 (613,889)  (1,016,274)

 (4,309,990)  (4,411,804)

 87,997,648  111,517,483 
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2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

26 Deferred Tax  Liabilities

26.1 Deferred Tax Liability

 54,344,543  31,972,276 

 (14,853,467)  22,652,296 

 450,617  (280,029)

 39,941,693  54,344,543 

26.2

26.3 Composition of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

2017 2016

Liabilities Liabilities

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Property, Plant and Equipment  18,014,662  -    14,691,489 

 5,169,468  -    5,706,961 

 14,621,571  -   

 10,315,774  8,544,256  -   

Lease Rental Receivables  27,073,337  -    57,111,920 

 10,315,774  50,257,467  23,165,827  77,510,370 

 39,941,693  54,344,543 

2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

27

Present Value of Unfunded Gratuity  36,842,050  30,515,198 

 36,842,050  30,515,198 

Provision for Retiring Gratuity

 30,515,198  22,368,690 

 8,457,338  7,235,033 

 (1,609,346)  1,000,104 

 37,363,190  30,603,827 

 (521,140)  (88,629)

 36,842,050  30,515,198 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

27.1

Current Service Cost  4,593,422  4,141,571 

Interest Cost  3,863,916  3,093,462 

 8,457,338  7,235,033 

 (1,609,346)  1,000,104 

27.2 Actuarial Assumptions

(a) Rate of Discount
 11.5% p.a

(Net of tax)
 10.5% p.a

(Net of tax)

(b) Salary Increment Rate 10% 10%

 10%   9%

(c)

Males 60 years 60 years

Females 60 years 60 years

(d) 1% 1%

(e)  

medical grounds.
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 Issued for  Issued for 

 Cash during  Non-Cash 

 Consideration 31st March 2017

28  Stated Capital

28.1 Issued and Fully Paid

Number of Ordinary Shares  165,333,334  -    -    165,333,334 

 165,333,334  -    -    165,333,334 

Rupee Value of Ordinary Shares  1,445,333,342  -    -    1,445,333,342 

 1,445,333,342  -    -    1,445,333,342 

2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

29 Statutory Reserves

Reserve Fund (Note 29.1)  113,852,174  95,360,709 

 113,852,174  95,360,709 

29.1 Reserve Fund

 95,360,709  73,317,972 

 18,491,465  22,042,737 

 113,852,174  95,360,709 

Companies.

Capital Funds to Deposit Liabilities  % of transfer to Reserve Fund

Not less than 25% 5

Less than 25% and not less than 10% 20

Less than 10% 50

Liabilities, belongs to not less than 25% category.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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30 Financial Reporting by Segments as Per Provision of the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard SLFRS 8

 
31st March

Finance Lease Hire Purchase Other Total

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

30.1 Business Segments (Rs.’000)

Interest  1,709,275  1,235,619  141,201  333,268  464,638  341,647  103,008  72,355  2,418,122  1,982,889 
    
Net Fee and Commission 
Income  81,986  73,504  925  2,592  22,597  17,842  7,602  438  113,110  94,376 

Net Trading Income  -    -    -    558  741  558  741 

Other Operating Income  10,682  12,585  4,071  6,052  13,761  9,315  49,994  7,438  78,508  35,390 

Total Revenue  1,801,943  1,321,708  146,197  341,912  500,996  368,804  161,161  80,972  2,610,297  2,113,396 

    

 (730,398)  (483,730)  (25,187)  (57,347)  (151,182)  (92,573)  (72,229)  (54,485)  (978,996)  (688,135)

 (43,966)  (20,713)  (1,516)  (2,456)  (9,100)  (3,965)  (4,348)  (2,336)  (58,930)  (29,470)

 (614,985)  (460,543)  (21,207)  (54,598)  (127,293)  (88,136)  (60,815)  (46,758)  (824,300)  (650,035)

 (33,927)  (7,802)  5,613  1,852  (32,388)  (23,193)  (9,839)  -    (70,541)  (29,143)

Financial Services  (81,558)  -    (2,812)  (19,577)  (16,881)  (31,603)  (8,065)  (18,620)  (109,316)  (69,800)

    

 297,109  348,920  101,088  209,786  164,152  129,334  5,865  (41,227)  568,214  646,813 
    

 (68,935)  (118,913)  (29,917)  (32,448)  (53,829)  (32,951)  (45,704)  (21,646)  (198,385)  (205,958)

 228,174  230,007  71,171  177,338  110,323  96,383  (39,839)  (62,873)  369,829  440,855 

Segment Assets  9,305,471  7,683,692  320,895  908,308  1,926,094  1,466,256  1,146,019  977,553 
 

12,698,479 
 

11,035,809 

    

Segment Liabilities  8,095,657  6,227,140  273,090  711,084  1,175,281  895,928  433,835  604,029  9,977,862  8,438,181 

    

Segment assets include 
the additions to non 
current assets  28,174  52,135  972  6,183  5,832  9,980  2,786  5,878  37,764  74,176 
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31 Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

2017
 Less than 3   3-12  1-3  3-5  Over 5 

 Months  Months  Total 
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Interest Earning Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents                                                                              166,811,200  166,811,200 

 81,128,395  81,128,395 
Hire Purchase Receivables  62,539,254  135,300,910  122,344,336  710,890  320,895,390 
Lease Rental Receivables  950,162,581  2,346,723,142  4,696,044,746  1,310,767,460  1,773,401  9,305,471,330 

658,817,935 993,211,970 258,273,026  15,415,401  375,194 1,926,093,526
Financial Instruments - Held-to-Maturity                                                           227,012,875  240,000,000  13,218,933  69,023,995  549,255,803 
Total Interest Earning Assets 2,146,472,240 3,715,236,022  5,076,662,108   1,340,112,684 71,172,590 12,349,655,644
Percentage(%) 17.4  30.1  41.1   10.9 0.5  100.0 

Interest Bearing Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities Due to 
Customers  926,631,926  1,835,457,188  370,939,695  66,133,252  11,385,524  3,210,547,585 

 1,136,786,042  528,096,330  682,816,347  2,667,464,915  5,015,163,634 
Due to Related Companies  69,369,484  500,000,000  569,369,484 

 478,180,936  478,180,936 
Total Interest Bearing Liabilities  2,610,968,388  2,863,553,518  1,053,756,042  2,733,598,167  11,385,524  9,273,261,639 
Percentage(%)  28.2  30.9  11.4  29.5  0.1  100.0 

2016
 Less than 3   3-12  1-3  3-5  Over 5 

 Months  Months  Total 
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Interest Earning Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents                                                                              43,737,433  -    -    -    -    43,737,433 

 85,671,491  -    -    -    -    85,671,491 
Hire Purchase Receivables  125,549,968  285,868,248  456,770,732  40,118,559  908,307,507 
Lease Rental Receivables  676,674,912  1,866,885,477  3,758,529,482  1,352,811,853  6,829,780  7,661,731,504 

 383,142,879  815,511,708  248,321,989  18,988,169  291,450  1,466,256,195 
Financial Instruments - Held-to-Maturity                                                           536,916,508  -    -    -    -    536,916,508 
Total Interest Earning Assets  1,851,693,191  2,968,265,433  4,463,622,203  1,411,918,581  7,121,230  10,702,620,638 
Percentage(%)  17.3  27.7  41.7  13.2  0.1  100.0 

Interest Bearing Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities Due to 
Customers  1,066,930,632  1,571,807,869  505,963,445  18,719,502  10,346,015  3,173,767,463 

 239,679,770  527,825,887  1,125,480,677  1,732,522,584  -    3,625,508,918 
Due to Related Companies  421,199,128  -    -    -    -    421,199,128 

 353,420,475  -    -    -    -    353,420,475 
Total Interest Bearing Liabilities  2,081,230,005  2,099,633,756  1,631,444,122  1,751,242,086  10,346,015  7,573,895,984 
Percentage(%)  27.5  27.7  21.5  23.1  0.1  100.0 
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 32  Financial Instruments         
 32.1  Financial Risk Management         
          

developing and monitoring Company’s risk management policies. 

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risk faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk 
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. 

The Company, through its training and management standard and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control 

Committee.

32.1.1  Credit Risk 

obligations and arises principally from the Company’s loans and advances to customers and other banks and investment debt securities. 

individual obligor default risk, country and sector risk).

(a) 
separate Credit evaluation department, reporting to the Company Credit Committee, is responsible for managing the Company’s credit 

 Directors as appropriate.  

corrective action to be taken.  

 Providing advice, guidance and specialist skills to business units to promote best practice throughout the group in the management of 
credit risk.
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(b) Exposure to credit risk 

Carrying Amount  
(Net of Impairment)

2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

Loans & receivables from Customers  11,552,460,246  10,036,295,206 

 11,552,460,246  10,036,295,206 

Individual Customers  11,369,923,726  9,993,054,340 

Corporate Customers  182,536,520  43,240,866 

 11,552,460,246  10,036,295,206 

(c) Credit Concentration risk

(i) Product Concentration

Carrying Amount (Net of Impairment)

2017 2016

Rs. % Rs. %

Leasing  9,305,471,330 81  7,661,731,504 76

Hire Purchase  320,895,390 3  908,307,507 9

 1,926,093,526 17  1,466,256,195 15

 11,552,460,246 100  10,036,295,206 100

(ii) Geographical Concentration

seen in the Western Province.
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 Geographical Concentration

Carrying Amount (Net of Impairment)

2017 2016

Rs. % Rs. %

Central  1,623,471,987 15  1,453,327,329 15

Eastern  469,310,088 4  421,601,446 4

North Central  1,192,412,489 10  1,136,684,025 11

North Western  2,828,234,938 25  2,496,128,994 25

Northern  137,423,634 1  163,370,285 2

 488,581,226 4  439,731,589 4

Southern  1,667,852,189 14  1,392,485,395 14

Uva  461,571,667 4  392,108,425 4

Western  2,683,602,028 24  2,140,857,718 21

 11,552,460,246 100  10,036,295,206 100

(iii) Sector Wise Analysis of Credit Exposures

Sector Wise Analysis of Credit Exposures

Carrying Amount (Net of Impairment)

2017 2016

Rs. % Rs. %

 1,823,024,455 16  1,856,823,716 18

Tourism  94,834,963 1  13,439,067 0

Transport  3,308,123,073 29  2,172,114,751 22

Construction  89,219,836 1  21,794,699 0

Services  2,589,791,879 22  2,500,191,790 25

Individual  3,647,466,040 31  3,471,931,183 35

 11,552,460,246 100  10,036,295,206 100

(iv) Allowance for Impairment        

concentration of credit risk. Leased assets, subject to collateral undertakings so that in the event of non-payment, the Company can have 
a secured claim.

the Company uses historical trends of the probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of losses incurred, adjusted for 

less than suggested by historical data.         
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 Impairment Losses

2017 2016

 Gross Impairment Net Gross Impairment Net

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Not past due  6,965,922,757  3,376,093  6,962,546,664  6,495,620,548  2,753,896  6,492,866,652 

Past due 1-30 days  2,505,034,184  4,286,154  2,500,748,030  1,882,854,285  2,312,088  1,880,542,197 

Past due 31-120 days  1,898,533,093  10,233,330  1,888,299,763  1,461,438,621  6,321,951  1,455,116,670 

Past due 121-180 days  128,508,332  10,829,964  117,678,368  130,330,982  8,022,345  122,308,637 

Past due 181-360 days  103,986,136  29,589,213  74,396,923  94,601,912  20,876,218  73,725,694 

Past due more than 360 days  144,819,274  136,028,776  8,790,498  147,453,589  135,718,233  11,735,356 

 11,746,803,776  194,343,530  11,552,460,246  10,212,299,937  176,004,731  10,036,295,206 

(v) Credit Risk on Other Financial Assets

(a) Placement with Banks

2017 2016

Rs. Rs.

Rating

People’s Bank  20,440,000  20,100,685 

HNB/NDB  40,541,683  40,532,450 

Seylan Bank  20,146,712  25,038,356 

 81,128,395  85,671,491 

(b) Financial Instruments - Held-to-Maturity                                                          

2017 2016

Rs. Rs.

Rating

 549,255,803  536,916,508 

 549,255,803  536,916,508 

(c) Cash & Cash Equivalents

purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments. 
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 32.1.2  Liquidity Risk

agreements

31st March 2017  Carrying   Contractual   6 months  
 or less 6-12 Months

 More than 5  

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Non Derivative 
Financial Liabilities

 1,505,411,910  1,687,278,660  1,159,045,285  165,933,375  150,000,000  212,300,000 
Unsecured Debenture 
Issues  829,412,677  942,951,817  441,916,225  501,035,592 
Secured Debenture 
Issues  2,574,164,915  3,363,939,396  124,323,389  124,102,659  247,886,182  2,867,627,166 
Unsecured 
Commercial Papers  106,174,132  109,206,190  109,206,190 
Due to Related 
Companies  569,369,484  569,369,484  569,369,484 

Trade Other Payables  539,819,082  539,819,082  539,819,082 
Other Financial 
Liabilities Due to 
Customers  3,210,547,585  3,210,547,585  1,716,648,906  1,045,440,208  370,939,695  66,133,252  11,385,524 

 478,180,936  478,180,936  478,180,936 

 9,813,080,721  10,901,293,150  4,696,593,272  1,777,392,467  1,269,861,469  3,146,060,418  11,385,524 

31st March 2016  Carrying   Contractual   6 months or  
 less 6-12 Months

 More than 5  

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Non Derivative 
Financial Liabilities

 864,479,771  920,235,358  306,514,570  101,420,788  249,600,000  262,700,000  -   
Unsecured Debenture 
Issues  1,240,806,564  1,508,949,218  504,282,313  61,681,097  503,115,295  439,870,513  -   
Secured Debenture 
Issues 1,520,222,584 2,151,176,747 74,890,711 74,665,813 149,918,241 331,479,397 -
Due to Related 
Companies  421,199,128  421,199,128  -    -    -    -    -   

Trade Other Payables  667,907,345  667,907,345  667,907,345  -    -    -    -   
Other Financial 
Liabilities Due to 
Customers  3,173,767,463  3,289,734,095  648,220,548  1,310,383,261  844,944,770  121,250,817  364,934,699 

 353,420,475  353,420,475  353,420,475  -    -    -    -   

8,241,803,330 9,312,622,366 2,976,435,090 1,548,150,959 1,747,578,306 1,155,300,727  364,934,699 

32.1.3  Market Risk

(a) Interest Rate Risk  
(b) Currency Risk                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
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(a)  Interest Rate Risk

 

2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

Fixed Rate Instruments

 12,182,844,444  10,658,883,205

Financial Liabilities  (7,774,585,365)  (7,000,285,385)

 4,408,259,079  3,658,597,820 

Variable  Rate Instruments

 -   

Financial Liabilities  (2,038,495,356)  (975,628,607)

 (2,038,495,356)  (975,628,607)

 Cash Flow Sensitivity for Variable Rate Instruments        

1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

31st March 2017

Variable Rate Instruments  (20,384,954)  20,384,954  (14,677,167)  14,677,167 

 (20,384,954)  20,384,954  (14,677,167)  14,677,167 

31st March 2016

Variable Rate Instruments  (9,756,286)  9,756,286  (7,024,526)  7,024,526 

 (9,756,286)  9,756,286  (7,024,526)  7,024,526 

(b ) Currency risk

at the reporting date, do not hold ‘Financial instruments’ denominated in currencies other than its functional / reporting currency, hence 

Rupees.

Operation. 

Therefore, currency risk to the Company is minimal.     

Notes to the Financial Statements
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32.1.4  Operational Risk      

legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from operations of 
the Company. 

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior 
management of the Company. This responsibility is supported by the development of Company standards for the management of 
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As at 31st March 2017

   Loans and   
 Other   
 Receivables

 Held-to-   
 maturity  sale

 Other Financial   
 Liabilities Total  Fair Value

   Fair Value   
Measurement

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Level

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents                                                                         14.1  166,811,200  166,811,200 

 81,128,395  81,128,395 
Hire Purchase Receivables 15.1  320,895,390  320,895,390 
Lease Rental Receivables 15.2  9,305,471,330  9,305,471,330 

15.3  1,926,093,526  1,926,093,526 
Financial Instruments - 

16  41,300  41,300   41,300    
Financial Instruments - Held-
to-Maturity                                                          17  549,255,803  549,255,803 
Total Financial Assets  11,800,399,841  549,255,803  41,300  12,349,696,944  

Financial Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities Due 
to Customers                                                   21  3,210,547,585  3,210,547,585 
Debentures 22  3,403,577,592  3,403,577,592 

22  1,505,411,910  1,505,411,910 
Commercial Papers 22 106,174,132 106,174,132
Trade Other Payables 23  539,819,082  539,819,082 
Due to Related Companies                                                                              24  569,369,484  569,369,484 

14.2  478,180,936  478,180,936 
Total Financial Liabilities  9,813,080,721  9,813,080,721 

   Loans and   
 Other   
 Receivables

 Held-to-  
 maturity  sale

 Other Financial   
 Liabilities Total  Fair Value

   Fair Value   
Measurement

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Level

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents                                                                         14.1  43,737,433  -    -    -    43,737,433  -    -   

 85,671,491  -    -    -    85,671,491  -    -   

Hire Purchase Receivables 15.1  908,307,507  -    -    -    908,307,507  -    -   

Lease Rental Receivables 15.2  7,661,731,504  -    -    -    7,661,731,504  -    -   

15.3  1,466,256,195  -    -    -    1,466,256,195  -    -   
Financial Instruments - 

16  -    -    41,300  -    41,300   41,300     -   
Financial Instruments - Held-
to-Maturity                                                          17  -    536,916,508  -    -    536,916,508 - -

Total Financial Assets  10,165,704,130  536,916,508  41,300  -    10,702,661,938 -

Financial Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities Due 
to Customers                                                   21  -    -    -    3,173,767,463  3,173,767,463  -    -   

Debentures 22  -    -    -    2,761,029,148  2,761,029,148 - -

22  -    -    -    864,479,770  864,479,770  -    -   

Trade Other Payables 23  -    -    -    667,907,345  667,907,345  -    -   

Due to Related Companies                                                                              24  -    -    -    421,199,128  421,199,128  -    -   

14.2  -    -    -    353,420,475  353,420,475  -    -   

Total Financial Liabilities  -    -    -    8,241,803,329  8,241,803,329 -

Notes to the Financial Statements
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the fair value computation of Held-to-Maturity Financial Instruments. 

32.3 Capital Management  

level of dividends to ordinary shareholders. 

32.3.1 Capital Adequacy

the Company namely Core capital to Risk-Weighted asset ratio and Total Capital to Risk-Weighted assets ratio.

The minimum requirement for Core Capital adequacy ratio and Total capital adequacy ratio are 5% and 10% respectively.

The core capital represents the permanent shareholders’, equity and reserves created or increase  by appropriations of retained earnings 
or other surpluses and the total capital include in addition to the core capital, the revaluation reserves, general provisions and other hybrid 
capital instruments and unsecured subordinated debts. 
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Balance Risk-Weighted Balance

2017 2016
Risk-Weighted  
 Factor 2017 2016

Rs. Rs. % Rs. Rs.

Total Risk-Weighted Assets Computation

Assets 

 1,244,292,125  43,751,953 -  -   

Investment in Government Securities  549,255,803  536,916,508 -  -   

 81,128,395  86,559,162 20  16,225,679  17,311,832 

 30,784,568  38,520,365 -  -   

 59,352,828  63,901,364 -  -   

Loans against Real Estate  3,065,465  2,491,071 50  1,532,733  1,245,536 

 2,397,504,595  1,420,755,822 100  2,397,504,595  1,420,755,822 

Finance Lease Receivable  9,253,942,967  7,607,381,310 100  9,253,942,967  7,607,381,310 

Hire Purchase Receivable  308,722,012  893,112,258 100  308,722,012  893,112,258 

 234,684,521  229,557,514 100  234,684,521  229,557,514 

 156,668,435  147,270,217 100  156,668,435  147,270,217 

Total Risk - Weighted Assets  14,319,401,714  11,070,217,544  12,369,280,942  10,316,634,489 

Total Capital Base Computation

Stated Capital  1,445,333,342  1,445,333,342 

Reserved Fund  95,360,709  73,317,972 

Published Retained Earnings  808,934,365  845,509,112 

Total Core Capital  2,349,628,416  2,364,160,426 

Supplementary Capital  -   

Total Supplementary Capital     -   

Capital Base     2,349,628,416  2,364,160,426 

 Capital Adequacy ratio

2017 2016

  % %

Core Capital Ratio Core Capital 19.00 22.92

Total Capital Ratio 19.00 22.92

Notes to the Financial Statements
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33  Commitments and Contingencies
33.1  Capital Commitments          

Within one year Rs. 25.9 million

33.2  Contingencies          

33.2.1  
Rs. 1,207,190.14/-

33.2.2 

33.3  Assets Pledged

value of Rs. 1,602,300,000, 610,000,000 & 2,500,000,000 respectively, as at the year end:

Type of Facility

Outstanding
 Credit Facility           
 Rs.

Carrying Value
Rs.

Loan   892,100,000 
 300,000,000  1,609,335,000 

 200,000,000  300,000,000 
Loan   120,200,000 

 100,000,000  286,260,000 
Loan   490,000,000 

 10,000,000  750,000,000 
Loan  100,000,000  130,000,000 
Debenture  2,500,000,000  3,100,000,000 

 4,712,300,000  6,175,595,000 
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34.1 First & Final Dividend 2016/17

ended 31st March 2017.

35  Related Party Transactions

N.V.

Name of the Company  Nature of 2017 2016
 and Relationship  Transaction Rs. Rs.

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC Dividend Paid (Gross)  197,402,615  166,163,818 
(Parent Company) Debenture Issued  462,090,000  450,000,000 

Debenture Interest Paid  108,160,729  39,977,934 
 2,586,021,249  1,751,568,394 

Sales Financed to purchase goods from Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC  620,039,178  463,900,706 
 200,000,000 

 500,000,000  500,000,000 
 500,000,000  -   

 3,490,709  2,497,409 
 1,249,661  8,324,934 

Rental Collections through Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC  3,422,298,503  2,423,516,173 
Service Charge Income  14,529,309  7,766,609 
Collection Commission Paid  28,457,646  22,055,521 

 25,320,636  20,853,136 
Royalty Paid Through Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC  24,846,849  38,362,864 
Rent Reimbursed  16,200,486  14,318,962 

 331,564,783  256,000,764 
 569,369,484  421,199,128 

Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC  114,200,004  102,835,323 
(Related Entity) Deposits Interest Payment (Gross)  4,606,172  6,656,642 

Ltd  71,279 
(Related Entity)  71,279 

 -   

35.2  The amount due to Singer(Sri Lanka) PLC as at 31st March 2017, are disclosed in Note 24 of the Financial Statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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36  Transactions with Key Management Personnel
36.1

31st March 2017 31st March 2016

 Rs.  Rs. 

Deposit kept by Key Management Personnel or their close family members  22,911,877  14,833,615 

 18,794,830  18,776,928 

37  Directors’ Responsibility
Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements. 

 Parent ,Associate & Related Companies

Company Name Directors

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC
Electrical Equipment & Consumer Durables, Personal 

 

Dr. Saman Kelegama

Mr. L. N. S. Kumara Samarasinghe

Mr. P.J. O’Donnell

Mr. G.J. Walker

Mr. J. J. Hyun

Mr. D. T. R. De Silva

Mr. Deepal Sooriyarachchi

Mr. S.H. Goodman 

Mr. G.M.Gellecanao  

Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC Dr. Saman Kelegama

Mr. Ranil De Silva

Mr. G.J. Walker

Mr. V.G.K. Vidyarathne

Educational Services



174

Ten Year Summary
 2017       
 Rs.000

 2016       
 Rs.000

 2015       
 Rs.000

 2014       
 Rs.000

 2013       
 Rs.000

 2012        
 Rs.000

 2011       
 Rs.000

 2010        
 Rs.000

 2009        
 Rs.000

 2008        
 Rs.000

Operating Results
Income  2,610,297  2,113,396  1,986,040  1,894,761  1,755,601  1,277,360  1,002,382  705,115  460,394  257,791 

 978,996  688,135  669,413  759,449  742,013  407,774  283,008  316,422  283,228  146,620 
 953,771  708,648  711,726  732,390  669,288  557,252  459,739  279,974  147,733  94,512 

Services  109,316  69,800  38,766  28,428  20,908  26,595  34,808  21,700  13,011  5,041 
 568,214  646,813  566,135  374,493  323,391  285,739  224,826  87,019  16,422  40,399 
 198,385  205,958  177,469  105,897  66,857  70,058  105,371  32,900  3,691  (2,281)
 369,829  440,855  388,666  268,597  256,535  215,681  119,456  54,119  12,731  13,899 

Other Comprehensive Income 
 (1,159)  720  1,563  447  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total Comprehensive Income 
 370,988  440,135  387,103  268,149  256,535  215,681  119,456  54,119  12,731  36,419 

Dividends 175,253  248,000  206,667  107,467  107,467  85,333  42,667  20,000  10,000  15,000 

Assets
Liquid assets  797,196  666,326  766,506  815,542  402,973  325,844  211,141  174,094  171,710  100,115 
Investments  41  41  41  41  41  41  41  41  41  41 

 11,552,460  10,036,295  7,841,541  7,047,463  6,590,722  6,182,774  4,007,415  2,981,079  1,791,804  1,186,006 
 192,113  185,872  141,412  116,219  151,236  174,967  124,203  61,954  81,397  69,527 

Property, Plant & Equipment  124,658  111,233  66,728  72,711  53,461  29,554  27,993  22,928  24,566  18,142 
 32,011  36,041  30,728  32,383  25,262  13,650  12,346  7,314  8,978  10,749 

 -    -    -    33,780  11,858  13,420  8,581  -    -   
 -    -    -    -    9,288  -    -    -    -   

 12,698,479  11,035,808  8,846,956  8,084,359  7,257,475  6,747,976  4,396,559  3,255,991  2,078,496  1,384,580 

Liabilities

 5,493,345  3,978,929  1,592,323  1,325,231  1,009,276  1,223,338  81,968  40,017  362,126  386,585 
Deposit from Customers  3,210,548  3,173,767  4,150,193  4,277,335  3,318,927  2,740,998  1,882,620  1,518,043  1,097,979  642,198 

Companies  569,369  421,199  51,325  28,679  661,651  1,299,856  1,187,515  997,250  223,781  4,879 
 36,842  30,515  22,369  14,947  11,521  7,479  5,572  3,751  2,843  1,643 
 39,942  54,345  31,972  14,543  34,755  4,879  3,986  2,904  8,654  9,179 

Other Liabilities  627,817  779,425  634,614  339,100  297,504  359,292  295,779  228,247  161,453  116,166 
Total Liabilities  9,977,863  8,438,180  6,482,796  5,999,835  5,333,634  5,635,842  3,457,440  2,790,212  1,856,836  1,160,650 

Equity
Stated Capital  1,445,333  1,445,333  1,445,333  1,445,333  1,445,333  800,000  800,000  400,000  200,000  200,000 
Statutory Reserves  113,852  95,361  73,318  136,128  108,437  65,161  20,990  10,748  8,042  3,013 
Retained Earnings  1,161,431  1,056,934  845,509  503,063  370,071  246,973  118,129  55,031  13,618  20,917 
Total Equity  2,720,616  2,597,628  2,364,160  2,084,524  1,923,841  1,112,134  939,119  465,779  221,660  223,930 
Total Liabilities & Equity  12,698,479  11,035,808  8,846,956  8,084,359  7,257,475  6,747,976  4,396,559  3,255,991  2,078,496  1,384,580 

Investor Information
Gross Dividend (Rs.) 175,253  248,000  206,667  107,467  107,467  85,333  42,667  20,000  10,000  15,000 
Dividend per share (Rs.)  1.06    1.50  1.25  0.65  0.65  0.79  0.40  0.25  0.25  0.38 
Dividend Cover (Times)  2.11    1.78  1.88  2.50  2.39  2.53  2.80  2.71  1.27  2.43 

 16.46  15.71  14.30  12.61  13.17  10.33  14.83  8.22  11.08  11.20 
Market Price Per Share (Rs.) 

 23.60  27.90  21.40  15.70  18.50  44.20  55.70  -    -    -   
Market Price Per Share (Rs.) 
-Minimum  16.60  16.50  12.00  10.50  10.90  15.20  35.00  -    -    -   

 17.10  18.10  18.30  12.10  12.60  16.20  36.50  -    -    -   
Price Earning Ratio (Times)  7.64  6.79  7.78  7.45  7.18  8.09  19.35  -    -    -   

 2.24  2.67  2.35  1.62  1.76  2.00  1.89  0.96  0.64  1.82 

Ratios
23.51 6.41 4.82 7.93 37.44 27.43 42.16 53.15 78.59 56.25

(%) 42.27 2.80 -11.86 2.35 81.97 44.09 -10.56 11.72 93.17 126.60

34.59 -0.43 -2.82 9.43 20.11 21.21 64.21 89.51 56.31 26.62
13.70 44.36 4.53 18.94 80.55 120.73 325.09 -65.04 228.25

15.11 27.99 11.27 6.93 6.60 54.28 34.43 66.37 51.08 59.92
1.16 -23.53 -2.97 28.88 21.08 45.59 24.02 38.26 70.97 122.55

(%) 4.73 9.88 13.41 8.35 72.99 18.42 101.62 110.13 -1.01 2.94
21.42 23.54 26.72 25.78 26.51 16.48 21.36 14.31 10.66 16.17

Debt: Equity (Times)  3.41  2.95  2.43  2.69  2.59  4.73  3.36  5.49  7.60  4.62 
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Value Added Statement
2017 2016

Rs. % Rs. %

Income Earned by Providing Financial Services  2,418,122,004  1,982,888,590 

Cost of Services  (1,449,403,455)  (1,056,580,133)

 968,718,549  926,308,457 

Non-Financial Income  192,175,451  130,507,126 

Provision for Impairment Losses  (70,540,741)  (29,143,097)

 1,090,353,259  1,027,672,486 

Value Allocated

To Employees as Remuneration  353,893,133 32  281,589,606 27

To Shareholders as Dividend 175,253,334 16  248,000,001 24

 213,238,042 20  183,305,830 18

 109,316,438 10  69,799,573 7

              - as Depreciation  58,929,810 5  29,470,447 3

              - as Retained Earnings 194,575,969 18  192,854,733 19

 (14,853,467)  22,652,296 2

 1,090,353,259 100  1,027,672,486 100

To employees as remuneration

To saherholders as dividend

To government as tax

To business expansion and growth

Value Distribution 2016/1732%

16%

30%

22%

To employees as remuneration

To saherholders as dividend

To government as tax

To business expansion and growth

Value Distribution 2015/1627%

24%

25%

24%
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Share Information
1.  Stated Capital

 31st March 2017 31st March 2016

Issued and Fully-paid Capital (Rs.)  1,445,333,342  1,445,333,342 

No. of Shares- Ordinary Shares         165,333,334  165,333,334 

Class of shares                                 Ordinary Shares
One Vote per Ordinary ShareVoting Rights

2.  Stock Exchange Listing

3.  Directors Shareholdings

Name of the Director 31st March 2017 31st March 2016

 No of Shares No of Shares

Dr. S. Kelegama  - 

 - 

Mr. N.I. Russel de Mel  - 

Mr. J. Hyun  - 

Mr. G.J. Walker  - 

 - 

 - 

 31,003  31,003 

Mr. J. Mendis  59,000  59,000 

 - 

 15,000  15,000 

 - 

 43,555  43,555 

 8,000  8,000 
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4.  Analysis of Shareholders According to the Number of Shares as at 31st March 2017

No. of Shareholders: 31st March 2017 - 7,133 (31st March 2016 - 7,431)

Resident Shareholders Non Resident Shareholders Total Shareholders

Shares
No.of

Holders
 Total  
 Holdings %

No.of
Holders

Total 
Holdings %

 No.of  
 Holders

 Total  
 Holdings %

            

1 - 1000 5,211  2,328,817 1.41 11  6,810 5222  2,335,627  1.41 

1001 - 10000  1,524  5,332,801 3.23 13  66,012 0.04 1537  5,398,813  3.27 

10001 - 100000 337  10,245,932 6.20 8  257,270 0.16 345  10,503,202  6.35 

100001 - 1000000 31  7,840,764 4.74 1  500,000 0.30 32  8,340,764  5.04 

1000001 - 10000000 2  5,823,874 3.52 2  5,823,874 3.53

OVER  10000001  1  132,931,054 80.40 1  132,931,054  80.40 

   7,106  164,503,242  99.50  33  830,092  0.50  7,139  165,333,334  100.00 

5.  Analysis of Shares

 31 st March 2017 31 st March 2016

Categories of Shares
 No. of Share  
 Holders No. of Shares

 No. of Share  
 Holders No. of Shares

Individuals  6,956  18,931,465  7,254  20,570,557 

Institutions  183  146,401,869  182  144,762,777 

 7,139  165,333,334  7,436  165,333,334 

6.  Market Value Per Share

2017 2016

 Rs. Date Rs. Date

 23.60 16th May 2016  27.90 

 16.60 24th March 2017  16.50 9th March 2016

Closing Price  17.10 31st March 2017  18.10 31st March 2016

7.  Dividends  
Interim Dividend 2016/17 - Nil (2015/16 - Nil)  

Final Dividend 2016/17 - Rs. 1.06/- (2015/16 - Rs. 1.50/-) 
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Share Information

8.  Twenty Largest Shareholders 

2017
Name No of Shares %

1 Singer (Sri Lanka) Limited  132,931,054  80.40 
2  3,440,878  2.08 
3  2,382,996  1.44 
4  556,000  0.34 
5 United Motors Lanka Plc  555,729  0.34 
6 Ceylon Investment Plc  500,000  0.30 
7 Elgin Investments Ltd  500,000  0.30 
8  452,000  0.27 
9 Unimo Enterprises Ltd  426,997  0.26 
10  400,000  0.24 
11  375,956  0.23 
12 People’s Leasing & Finance PLC / Hi Line Trading (Pvt) Ltd  372,844  0.23 
13 Mr. Chelliah Ramachandran  365,200  0.22 
14  360,000  0.22 
15  333,325  0.20 
16 Mr. Ganegoda Hitiarachchige Sarath Kumara  317,555  0.19 
17  288,364 0.18
18 Mr. Loku Narangodage Sarath Kumara Samarasinghe  275,000  0.17 
19 Mr. Vidyaratne Ganitaguruge Kulatunge Vidyaratne  205,000  0.12 
20  185,206  0.11 

 145,224,104  87.84 
Others  20,109,230  12.16 

 165,333,334  100.00 

2016
Name No of Shares %

1 Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC  132,931,054  80.40 
2  2,381,000  1.44 
3  1,169,356  0.71 
4 Mr. Mushtaq Mohamed Fuad  759,819  0.46 
5  680,487  0.41 
6  677,266  0.41 
7  501,000  0.30 
8 Mr. Chelliah Ramachandran  500,000  0.30 
9 Mr. Christopher Rohan Martin  454,994  0.28 
10  400,000  0.24 
11  400,000  0.24 
12  365,200  0.22 
13 Mr. Loku Narangodage Sarath Kumara Samarasinghe  360,000  0.22 
14 Mr. Gunasena Dangampola  349,778  0.21 
15  337,644  0.20 
16 Mr. Periyasaami Pillai Thevarajah  333,325  0.20 
17 Mr. Vidyaratne Ganitaguruge Kulatunge Vidyaratne  288,364  0.18 
18 Mr. Kadupitige Gabriel Gerard Fernando  275,000  0.17 
19 Mr. Saifuddin Esmail Patel  254,790  0.15 
20  240,664  0.15 

 143,659,741  86.89 
Others  21,673,593  13.11 

 165,333,334  100.00 
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9.  Public Holdings
Public holding as at 31st March 2017 is 19.50%  (31st March 2016 is 19.53%).

10.  Share Trading

2017 2016

Number of Transactions  5,073  8,950 

Number of Shares Traded  10,150,221  25,579,590 

Value of Shares Traded (Rs.)  213,049,363  616,201,644 

11.  Record of Scrip Issues

Issue No.of shares
 Share Capital  
 Rs’000

2011 Prior to Public Issue  -    80,000,000  400,000 

2011 Initial Public Issue  -    106,666,667  800,000 

2012 Rights Issue (at Rs.11.20) 1 : 0.55  165,333,334  1,445,333 

Total No. of Shares    165,333,334  1,445,333 

12. Listed Debentures

Interest rate of Comparable 

Government Securities

 as at Issue Date 
 (%)

11.17

11.17

8.35

13

13

 Highest  
 Traded  Traded

 Last 
 Traded Interest

  

Price Price Price Maturity

Rs. Rs. Rs. % %

102.00 102.00 102.00 15.31 13.40

100.00 98.45 99.88 12.01 11.82

100.00 100.00 100.00 12.55 11.99

Debt/equity ratio,Interest Cover and Quick asset ratio are given in Financial Highlights on Page No. 04 of this report.
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Glossary of Financial Terms

Accounting Policies 

rules and practices adopted by an enterprise 

statements.

Accrual Basis

equivalent. 

Amortization

the initial value of Intangible assets such as 

Available For Sale - Financial 
Instruments

namely held to maturity, fair value through 

a residual category does not mean that the 
entity stand ready to sell these all the time. 

Borrowings

Capital Adequacy Ratio 

international best practices on maintenance 

local requirements.

Capital Employed
Total assets less interest free liabilities, 
deferred income and provisions.

Cash Equivalents

periods of three month or less.

Capital Reserves

considered not available for distribution.

Collectively Assessed Impairment
Impairment assessment on a collective basis 
for homogeneous groups of loans that are 

to individual assessment. 

Contingent Liabilities
Conditions or situations at the reporting 

may not occur.

Corporate Governance

the management and direction of entity, 

Credit Rating

repay its obligations or the likelihood of not 
defaulting, carried out by an independent 
rating agency.

Debt

Deferred Taxation

return at a future date.

Dividend Cover

divided by gross dividend. Measures the 
number of times dividend is covered by 

Earnings per share(EPS)

ordinary shares in issue.

Equity
Shareholders’ fund.

Fair Value

arm’s length transactions.

Gross Dividend

distributed to shareholders.

Gross Non Performing Advances 
(As per CBSL) 

or more are overdue, as there is reasonable 
doubt regarding the collectability of its 
instalments of capital and interest.

Held To Maturity Investments 
(HTM)
Held-to-maturity investments are non-

that an entity has the positive intention and 
ability to hold to maturity.

Interest Cover

debt service ability.

Liquid Assets Ratio

that can be converted to cash readily (as 

divided by the total deposits.

Net Assets Per Share 

average number of ordinary shares in issue. 

Parent

subsidiaries. 

Price Earnings Ratio
Market price of share divided by earnings per 
share as reported at that date
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Related Parties

of the business.

Return on Average Shareholders’ 
Funds

shareholders’ funds.

Revenue Reserves
Reserves considered as being available for 
distributions and investments.

Segment 
Constituent business units grouped in terms 
of similarity of operations and location.

Supplementary Capital
Supplementary capital that consist of 
revaluation reserves, general provisions and 
debt instruments such as subordinated term 
debts and other hybrid capital instruments 
that combine characteristics of equity and 
debt.

Working Capital

current assets over current liabilities.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

SINGER FINANCE (LANKA) PLC

General Meeting of Singer Finance (Lanka) 

2017, at Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC, No. 80, 

AGENDA
1. To receive, consider and adopt the 

Financial Statements for the year ended 

2. To elect Mr. Nayana Jagath Kumar 

Director of the company and is being 
recommended for election

recommended for re-election. 

contribution to charities.

5. To reappoint Messrs KPMG as the 

year and to authorise the Directors to 
determine their remuneration.

(Sgd.)
P. Liyanage
Secretary
Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC

Colombo
02nd June 2017

Note

be kept open.

2. For the convenience of shareholders 

should be completed and returned to 

not later than 48 hours before the time 
appointed for holding of the Meeting. 

is entitled to appoint another person 

her.
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Form of Proxy

I / We ......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... of 

........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ being a Member/

Members of the above-named Company, hereby appoint ............................................................................................................................................................................

............................................................. of ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................

........................................................................... or failing him/her

1 Dr. Saman Kelegama or failing him

3  Mr. Nilendra Imal Russell De Mel or failing him 

4. Mr. Gavin John Walker or failing him

5. Mr. John J. Hyun or failing him 

6.  Mr. Nayana Jagath Kumar Dissanayake  or failing him

8. Mr. Janaka Mendis 

For Against

1.

2. To elect Mr. Nayana Jagath Kumar Dissanayake as a Director of the Company

3.

4. 

5.
and to authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration. 

Signed this .............................. day of .............................. 2017 ............................................................................................
  Signature of Shareholder



Instructions for Completion of Form of Proxy

at the meeting if required.
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Name of the Company
Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC

Legal Form
A public limited liability company incorporated 

in Sri Lanka on 19th April 2004 under the 

Companies Act No. 17 of 1982 and 

Re-registered under the Companies Act No. 

07 of 2007 on 16th December 2008. Shares of 

the Company are listed on the main board of 

Colombo Stock Exchange on 17th January 

2011.

Approved Credit Agency
Under Mortgage Act No. 06 of 1949 and Trust 

Receipt Ordinance No. 12 of 1947.

Accounting Year
31st March

No.80, Nawam Mawatha,

Colombo 02, Sri Lanka.

Telephone :  94-11-2316416 /2303717

Fax :  94-11-2303715

Company registration Number
Old – N (PBS) 1171

New – PB 813 PQ

134011718

Bankers
Bank of Ceylon

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

Deutsche Bank

Hatton National Bank PLC

National Development Bank PLC

Nations Trust Bank PLC

Sampath Bank PLC

Seylan Bank PLC

Auditors
KPMG

Chartered Accountants

No.32A, Sir Mahamed Macan Markar 

Mawatha,

P.O.Box 186,

Colombo 03.

Registrars
Business Intelligence Ltd

No.08, Tickell Road,

Colombo 08.

Secretary
Pramila Liyanage 

Lawyers
Neelakandan & Neelakandan

Attorneys-at-Law & Notaries Public

M&N Building (Level 5),

No.02, Deal Place,

Colombo 03.

Directorate
Dr. Saman Kelegama

Chairman / Director

Mr. J. A. Setukavalar

Senior Independent Non- Executive Director

Mr. N. I. Russell De Mel 

Independent Non- Executive Director 

Mr. J. J. Hyun

Non Executive Director

Mr. G. J. Walker

Non Executive Director

Mr. J. Kan

Non Executive Director 

(Resigned w.e.f. 30.06.2017)

Mr. Jagath Dissanayake

Non Executive Director 

(Appointed on 01.07.2016)

Mr. R. S. Wijeweera

Mr. J. Mendis

Non Executive Director

Mr. S. Ramanathan 

Alternate Director to Mr. J. J. Hyun

Mr.K.K.L.P. Yatiwella

Alternate Director to Mr. G. J. Walker

Mr. Chandana Samarasinghe- Alternate 

Director to Mr. Jagath Dissanayake

Mr. Thushan Amarasuriya – Alternate 

Director to Mr. R.S. Wijeweera 

Mr. Iman Perera – Alternate Director to Mr. 

Janaka Mendis

Senior Management
Mr. R. S. Wijeweera

Mr. Thushan Amarasuriya

Head of Finance

Mr. Iman Perera

Head of Business Development

Mr. R. I. Jayasuriya

Head of Credit & Recoveries

Mr. J. Wijeyegoonewardene

Head of Deposits

Mr. Thilan Rupasinghe 

Head of Cards
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